DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, JUNE 21, 2018 at 3:00 PM

DETROIT PUBLIC SAFETY HEADQUARTERS

1301 THIRD STREET

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48226

/

PAGE 1 TO 63

Τ	COMMISSIONERS:	
2	MS. EVA GARZA DEWAELSCHE, Vice-Chairpe	erson At-Large
3	MS. ELIZABETH BROOKS, At-Large	
4	MR. WILLIE E. BELL, Commissioner (Dist	2. 4)
5	MR. DARRYL D. BROWN, Commissioner (Dis	st. 1)
6	MS. SHIRLEY A. BURCH, Commissioner (Di	ist. 3)
7	MR. WILLIAM DAVIS, Commissioner (Dist.	. 7)
8	MR. JIM HOLLEY, At-Large	
9		
10	MR. ROBERT BROWN, Executive Manager	
11	MR. GREGORY HICKS, Secretary to the Bo	pard
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		



## 6/21/2018

	Page 3
1	
2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	REPRESENTING THE CHIEF OF POLICE'S OFFICE:
9	CHIEF OF POLICE, JAMES E. CRAIG
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



Τ	Detroit, Michigan
2	Thursday, June 21, 2018
3	About 3:00 p.m.
4	* *.
5	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Good afternoon.
6	COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.
7	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: I'm Vice Chair
8	Commissioner Eva Dewaelsche. And I'm going to be
9	chairing the meeting today for Chairperson Lisa Carter
10	who is excused.
11	On behalf of the Board, for those who are
12	attending, thank you for joining us. And for people
13	viewing this meeting on your government cable station,
14	thank you for viewing our meeting.
15	At this time, I would like to ask our
16	commissioners to introduce themselves. And I would
17	like to start to my left.
18	COMMISSIONER BROWN: Your military right?
19	Commissioner Darryl Brown, District One.
20	COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Jim Holley, At-Large.
21	COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner Willie Bell
22	District 4.
23	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Commissioner Elizabeth
24	Brooks, At-Large.
25	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Commissioner Shirley



1	Burch, District 3.
2	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Good afternoon, William
3	Davis, District 7.
4	MR. HICKS: Madam Chair, you have a quorum.
5	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. For our
6	invocation, we've invited Detroit Police Chaplain Corp,
7	Chaplain Mobley. Could you please come to the podium?
8	Thank you.
9	CHAPLAIN MOBLEY: I would like to thank you
10	this afternoon and all those that are here, the command
11	staff of DPD. And I would like to open up with prayer.
12	Father, we come before you today and we thank you
13	for the opportunity which you afford us to just lean on
14	your everlasting hand and trusting your grace and your
15	mercy. I thank you, Father, for this Commissioner
16	Board, Father, that has been guided through wisdom and
17	given, Father, direction that will help our community
18	and bless, Father, those who are here today.
19	So I thank you, in advance, for decisions that's
20	made, for discussions that have been given, that have
21	come to a medium, that is agreeable. I thank you for
22	these things and all things, in Jesus name, Amen.
23	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you,
24	Chaplain.



25

A couple of business items that we need to take

Page 6 1 care of first. Approval of the agenda. Is there a 2 motion to approve the June 21st agenda? 3 COMMISSIONER BROWN: So moved. 4 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: There's a motion. 5 Is there a second? 6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Second. 7 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: It's been moved and 8 seconded. All those in favor, start by saying aye. 9 Opposed. 10 (Motion carried) 11 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Extension, 12 Commissioners, you have the minutes for June 14, 2018. Is there a motion to approve? 13 14 COMMISSIONER BROWN: So moved. 15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Support. 16 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: It's been moved and 17 seconded. All those in favor, indicate by saying aye. Opposed? Extension. 18 19 (Motion carried) 20 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. I would 21 like to ask, is there any elected officials in our 22 audience? Any elected officials or representatives of elected officials, would you please introduce 23 24 yourselves?



Seeing none, then I have a couple of -- I have at

25

## 6/21/2018

	Page 7
1	least one person that I would like to introduce at this
2	time. We have a Jamiesha Oaks who is joining us today
3	and she's an intern here.
4	MS. OAKS: Hi.
5	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Graduated from
6	Rosedale High School and Henry Ford. And is a student
7	at Henry Ford?
8	MS. OAKS: Yes.
9	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: College. Thank
10	you. Thank you for being here.
1	Okay. Next on the agenda is the Chairperson's
12	report. And so, on behalf of the Board, I want to
13	express like we usually do at our meetings, our concern
14	and support for fallen and injured officers.
L5	Our board receives a weekly report from the
16	department, listing injured officers. And I would like
L7	to ask D.C. Bettison if he could just provide us with
18	any additional information.
19	Before I go any further, I would like to ask D.C.
20	Bettison, first of all introduce you because you're
21	going to be here for Chief Craig and to introduce your
22	staff.
23	CHIEF ASSISTANT BETTISON: Temporarily.
24	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Okay.



CHIEF ASSISTANT BETTISON: The Chief will be

25

1	down momentarily.
2	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Okay.
3	CHIEF ASSISTANT BETTISON: And Assistant
4	Chief Bettison. And I'll have the staff introduce
5	themselves. So, we'll start with the union.
6	(Host of DPD introduced themselves)
7	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Anybody else?
8	ASSISTANT CHIEF BETTISON: I think that's it.
9	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: And then, I would
10	like to ask our Secretary, Greg Hicks, to introduce our
11	Board of Police Commissioners staff.
12	MR. HICKS: Thank you, Madam Chair. Just
13	before making the introduction, I do want to indicate
14	for the record, Sergeant Quinn is taping today's
15	meeting and also, Media Services is providing the
16	audio/visual work. And then, Ms. Mapp is our court
17	reporter for the day.
18	And immediately to my right is Robert Brown. And
19	then, if we go all the way over to the left side,
20	interim personnel director, Ms. Lamar is sitting on the
21	left side of the room. And then, back to the right, we
22	go to Ms. Blossom who is media outreach. Mr. Wyrick
23	who is our attorney for the Board.
24	And then, of course, Ms. Johnson who is fiscal.
25	And then, Dr. McAllister, will introduce not only



1	herself, but also the OCI staff that's present.
2	MS. McCALISTER: Good afternoon, board.
3	COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.
4	MS. McCALISTER: I'm Paulene McCalister,
5	Supervising Investigator Cromwell, Investigator Banks,
6	Investigator Calloway, Investigator Nichols, Senior
7	Investigator Jones, and Senior Investigator Sloan.
8	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you,
9	Dr. McCalister. Thank you, Mr. Hicks.
10	And the Chief, Chief Craig, has joined us. Thank
11	you for joining us.
12	CHIEF CRAIG: Thank you.
13	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Good afternoon.
14	CHIEF CRAIG: Good afternoon.
15	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: So continuing, the
16	Board of Police Commissioners meet every week, every
17	Thursday except for Thanksgiving and Christmas holiday
18	periods. We meet at the Police Headquarters three
19	weeks in the month on Thursdays at 3:00 p.m. We always
20	meet in the community, the second Thursday of every
21	month.
22	The Police Commission exists to provide civilian
23	oversight for the work of the Detroit Police
24	Department. As a board, we receive and investigate
25	non-criminal citizen's complaints, monitor the



## 6/21/2018

1	operations of the department and work with the Mayor or
2	the Chief of Police to make or modify police policy.
3	Our objective is the same as the City of Detroit,
4	to provide for the best use of our tax dollars to
5	improve on the quality of life within our city.
6	As a board, we bring a unique perspective to
7	policing the eye and the viewpoint of civilians. The
8	principle of civilian oversight is as old and is as
9	important as all of the founding principles in our
10	democracy.
11	Separation of powers between and within government
12	allows for accountability, transparency, for the rights
13	to appeal, and citizen's control.
14	These principles are important nationally, as well
15	as locally. And I would like to call to your attention
16	a few important items. Several are informational items
17	and others will require action from the Board.
18	The first meeting in July is scheduled for
19	Thursday, July 5th. The timing of this meeting is
20	likely to result in limited attendance because of the
21	July 4th celebration, one day before our meeting. I
22	would suggest that we cancel the July 5th meeting,
23	provided that there is support for this cancellation at
24	the appropriate point, I will ask for a motion to
25	cancel the meeting.

Page 11

I want to draw your attention to your board
packet, board members. Included in the packet is a
copy of the Board of Police Commissioner special insert
in the Michigan Chronicle to be published with the June
27th Edition. The insert discusses our role in
providing oversight to the police department and many
of our current accomplishments.

I want to thank Ms. Teresa Blossom, our media and outreach director for her continuous work to provide information to the community and heighten the profile of the Board.

On Monday, June 18th, the department issued a notification advising that 23 senior citizens had been arrested for protesting in the area of Bates and Randolph Street in Downtown Detroit. The notification indicated that the seniors were ticketed and transported to the parking lot of the Detroit Detention Facility. The information beyond this point is unclear. I asked the department to update us on this activity which might be related to the Poor People's Campaign, and it's efforts to highlight a water crisis within our city.

The Board is concerned with the treatment of our senior citizens as well as others who protest, against injustices, to be handled in a respectful and



Page 12

professional manner. All reports suggest that this was the case on Monday, June 18th.

I asked the Chief to add an update on this in his report to the Board. And the Chief of Police has recommended six officers to be promoted to vacant ranks of Lieutenant and six officers to vacant ranks of sergeant. The Board has reviewed these recommendations and is poised to act on the Chief's recommendations.

Under new business, Commissioner Willie Bell will introduce a motion to act on the Chief's recommendation and read the names of the individual officers into the record for the Board's consideration.

Also, many of us have been shocked by the recent practice of the Federal Government to separate children from their parents at the U.S. border. I will provide a statement that should reflect the concerns of the Board.

We will also have a presentation from the Public Safety Foundation. Ms. Patti Kukula, Executive Director of the foundation will address the Board and report on the work of the foundation.

Toward the end of the meeting, we will have oral communications. Please make sure that you print your name on a speaker's card. The cards are located in the back of the room on the table at the back, or can be

Page 13

obtained	by	seeing	Mr. R	obert	Brown.	. <i>P</i>	and he	needs	to
have you	r ca	ard befo	ore th	e begi	inning	of	public	comme	ent.

And now, I would like to read a statement as it relates to the policy of forced family separations at the U.S. borders:

The Detroit Police Commissioners are outraged that law enforcement officers in our national government are involved in the inhumane act of separating families immigrating to the U.S. Moreover, we are equally outraged that our Federal Government has not developed a reasonable series of immigration laws that address today's realities.

The advice that our National Government gives to those fleeing terror is to report to a designated entrance point and claim asylum. In reality, as many people do as their instructed, our government continues to turn perspective asylum seekers away, often times leaving defenseless people with no other alternative, but to cross the boarders under the cover of night.

The general public is mindful that there are no laws that require the practice of separating children from their parents. Rather, this was a self-directed policy that was proposed and implemented by the current administration and has fueled the conflict.

Yesterday, President Trump signed an executive

order directing the government to stop the practice of
separating children from their parents. However, we
hope that our citizens clearly understand that the
executive order does not speak to the nearly 3,000
children who have already been separated from their
parents. In fact, the executive order does not include
a plan at all, to reunite and return 3,000 plus
children, some as young as a few months old, to their
parents.

In Michigan, according to a Detroit Free Press article, authored by Nancy Kaffer, an 8-month-old boy is one of 50 children already transferred to our state. Immediate family reunification and adequate support for children and adults should be one of the highest priorities of our public policy.

We, the Board of Police Commissioners, call upon President Donald Trump and the members of Congress to end all practices that separate children from their parents and to implement an immediate plan to return and reunite the 3,000 plus children with their parents.

We also, strongly urge Washington, D.C. to become more engaged with the family of nations to develop and implement reasonable immigration practices that recognize conflict in other areas of the world, that reinforce and drive defenseless people to seek

1	opportunities in America.
2	As a Board, we stand to remind others that our
3	nation's democratic principles and basic human decency
4	will not be denigrated by today's inhumane practices.
5	Ultimately, they will stand the test of time.
6	(Applause)
7	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. Thank
8	you.
9	At this time, I would like to request a motion for
10	the cancellation of our July 5th meeting. Is there a
11	motion?
12	COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, I so move
13	that we cancel our July was that 4th?
14	COMMISSIONER BROWN: 5th.
15	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: 5th meeting.
16	COMMISSIONER BELL: Our July 5th meeting, due
17	to all activities going on.
18	COMMISSIONER BROWN: Support.
19	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: There's been a
20	motion made and seconded. Is there any discussion?
21	Hearing none, all those in favor, indicate by saying
22	aye. Opposed? Motion carries. Thank you.
23	(Motion carried)
24	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: And now, I would
25	like to ask the Chief if he would like to give a report



1	to the Board.
2	CHIEF CRAIG: Good afternoon, Madam Chair and
3	Board.
4	COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.
5	CHIEF CRAIG: Start with crime. Overall
6	crime is down 11 percent which includes both violent
7	and property. Our violent crime is down 7 percent,
8	overall. And our property crime is down 12 percent.
9	As you know, over the last couple of weeks, we did
10	have some challenges. Things have slowed some. So,
11	we're optimistic that we'll continue through going in
12	that direction, particularly given that first day of
13	summer, fireworks are on Monday and we anticipate a
14	safe, safe event.
15	I also attended, over the weekend, Cops, Coffee,
16	and Cars at the Twelfth Precinct. Lots of community in
17	attendance. Also, mentoring that day, teaching young
18	men to tie a tie and to stay optimistic. That was at a
19	local business on Livernois.
20	And I would ask, as it relates to the one report
21	you ask, on the arrest, if Commander Salahji will come
22	forward and give an update. I believe what, 22
23	arrests?
24	COMMANDER SALAHJI: Twenty-three, sir.
25	CHIEF CRAIG: 23. Approximate.



1	COMMANDER SALAHJI: Good afternoon.
2	COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.
3	COMMANDER SALAHJI: So a week ago, we
4	received a notification from Lansing that a Poor
5	People's Coalition was planning a protest in downtown,
6	Detroit. Whenever we get notifications of a protest,
7	we try to get ahead of it. So we made contact with the
8	organizers and explained to them a dialogue of
9	basically, the rules of the protest and to explain
10	we're there to protect their right to protest as much
1	as they are there to protest.
12	So on arrival, we had about 250 subjects involved
13	in the protest. They started out at the water
4	department building on Randolph, and went to the area
15	of Campus Martius. Of 250 persons, all of them very
16	respective and mostly cooperative.
17	At that time, one of the representatives informed
18	me that they had, at that time, 20 persons, that to
L9	make a statement, wanted to be arrested that day. I
20	said okay and we talked about what that would look
21	like. And 23 persons eventually, did do acts that
22	required arrest. They blocked the front entrance of
23	the Compuware building, one, Campus Martius, with a
24	banner.



We talked to them and said you're blocking private

25

Page 18

property. You will have to leave or I will have to
place you under arrest. We did this under video
camera. They were very cooperative and they knew when
they submitted to arrest.

We also had one where a group blocked the M-1 Rail in the same fashion. All of the persons arrested, all 23 were obviously senior citizens, age 60 and up. And it was a very hot day. So due to that, we did take them. We took care with not trying to handcuff anyone in the rear when it wasn't necessary. And we had a shaded pavilion inside the Campus Martius Park. We placed them there. We provided water to them. That's while we waited for the prisoner bus. We made sure everyone had good fluids and everyone was well-treated and we had no complaints.

From that time, we took them to the Detroit

Detention Center. I spoke with Deputy Chief Baron

regarding the offenses which were minor city

ordinances. I said I don't believe registering them

and taking them back into cells would be appropriate or

necessary.

So, we made a decision to issue an appearance notice in court and their families were allowed to pick them up at the detention center without delay.

25 CHIEF CRAIG: Does the Board have any

1	questions?
2	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Any questions?
3	COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, I just want
4	to say outstanding work. I have witnessed the
5	activities in the past and how you continue to handle
6	these matters professionally and I just love that the
7	people can at least peacefully demonstrate their
8	concerns and protest, that's a core freedom in America.
9	And the way the officers responded is amazing. Thank
10	you.
11	COMMANDER SALAHJI: Thank you, Chair. Thank
12	you.
13	CHIEF CRAIG: Are there any additional
14	questions?
15	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: That concludes your
16	report? Okay. Any comments or questions?
17	COMMISSIONER BELL: Good to see you, Chief.
18	CHIEF CRAIG: Good to see you.
19	COMMISSIONER BELL: I wanted to follow-up
20	with Deputy Chief in regards to the noise complaint on
21	the river front. I think we met with Councilwoman Mary
22	Sheffield and others to address their concerns which
23	has been long standing, even from last year. So if you
24	can give us an update, that would be appreciated.
25	DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: Deputy Chief Bettison



Page 20

for the record. The update from Commander Mahone. It
was Operation Jefferson Corridor. And it was based off
of a complaint of music, motorcycles in the area. They
started back on May 18th. They've been executing it
ever since, with special attention and heightened
enforcement in the area

I can read off some stats and I can tell you before I even do that, that the primary individual that they were working with, receiving the complaints is satisfied at this time, based off the enforcement actions taken.

Just last week, they investigated 80 vehicles, issued 71 traffic violations, 32 parking violations, 5 vehicles towed. The week before that, they investigated 80 vehicles, 71 traffic violations. I'm sorry.

Oh, the week before that, it was one felony arrest for warrants, 95 investigations, 83 vehicles being investigated, 26 vehicles towed, 16 traffic stops and then, 12 ordinance citations issued for loud noise and 4 for open intoxicants, 15 traffic violations, 57 parking violations. They continue to give special attention to that area.

And thus far, I was at that community meeting in the efforts that they are deploying down there, the



Page 21 1 residents say they can see a difference and have 2 experienced relief. 3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Madam Chair. 4 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Are there any other 5 questions or comments? 6 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Yes. 7 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Ms. Brooks. 8 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Questions for the Police Chief. 9 10 There's confusion about the bicycle lanes on East 11 Jefferson. I've had citizens come to me and ask, "What 12 are the police going to do about it?" They don't know what lanes to get in. They don't know where to turn. 13 They don't know what all those cones and different 14 15 things are. Is there something that could be given to 16 the citizens so they can understand what the bicycle 17 lanes really are? CHIEF CRAIG: We have done that in our 18 19 community meetings. I know the Mayor has, at his meetings, had lots of conversation. I am not aware of 20 21 a brochure. Certainly, when you -- Jefferson, in 22 essence, was cut down from a, what was it, five lane 23 to? 24 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Down to two.



25

CHIEF CRAIG: Down to four. Not including

1	the left-turn lane, so two in either direction. Four
2	lanes and the left-turn lane, five. It's smaller and
3	the cones represent an area where vehicles are not to
4	travel. And that the lane closest to the curb line is
5	a lane designated for bicycles.
6	As you travel Jefferson, you will see notations on
7	the street notating bus stops where a bus can actually
8	turn into the area designated. People can be picked
9	up. That way, it won't obstruct the normal flow of
10	traffic.
11	The traffic is moving slower as you can imagine,
12	because of fewer lanes. It's going to take some time
13	to get adjusted to, but I certainly will make sure that
14	those precincts affected, I will have Chief Bettison
15	talk to the concerning command officers.
16	I know the Fifth Precinct and Seventh Precinct are
17	impacted on Jefferson. And so, we'll make sure their
18	education is clear. But I know the Mayor does it.
19	I've done it at a number of meetings.
20	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Thank you.
21	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Ms. Burch.
22	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, thank you.
23	Commissioner, I want to backup what Commissioner Brooks
24	is saying. I've noticed the bike lanes on Schaeffer.



Now, Schaeffer is up and down so the motorists don't

1	really know what lanes to drive in because there's not
2	a lot of markings saying bike lanes. When they put
3	this together, did they consider how many people use
4	Schaeffer? And why would you need a bike lane? If
5	they put it into consideration, not that many bikes go
6	that route.
7	CHIEF CRAIG: To the Chair, through the
8	Chair, I wasn't part of that planning, so I don't have
9	that answer for you.
10	I can tell you, Jefferson is a very heavily
11	traveled area. I do see lots of bicyclists using those
12	lanes. I think it's a byproduct of these bicycle
13	lanes, traffic along Jefferson has slowed down. That
14	has been a chronic problem as those who live on the
15	eastside know, we've had our traffic enforcement units
16	spend a lot of times, in the past, on Jefferson because
17	of speeders. I've made traffic stops on Jefferson
18	because of speeding.
19	So, I'm hoping this has the effect of slowly
20	people down. A lot of cities do it. I mean, Detroit's
21	not, I mean, certainly not the first. This is common
22	in a lot of big cities across America.
23	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner
24	Holley.



COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: This is just an

25

## 6/21/2018

	Page 24
1	unofficial because I'm sure the Chief is right, but the
2	city is changing. And we can sit here and talk about,
3	you know, traffic. In this gentrification, everybody
4	knows that we don't use bikes. But I do feel like,
5	perhaps, maybe we ought to bring somebody in. Like the
6	Chief said, he's not part of this planning on this.
7	Maybe we need to bring somebody in and just, sort of,
8	let the community know.
9	Because I went on Jefferson and I'm I'm not
10	the, you know, the smartest guy, nor am I the dumbest
11	guy, but it's tough navigating your way. And you've
12	got, I think, it was 50 bikes, people riding bikes.
13	And you so afraid that you you know, that's a busy
14	street.
15	People trying to get home after work, you know,
16	going east, you know. But it's changing. We just got
17	to understand that. I think the Chief is being very
18	nice as he always is, but I just know from my

nice as he always is, but I just know from my standpoint, that we really got to understand that it's stuff going in this city and we don't like bikes, we don't do bikes. You know, we don't.

And so, we can try to be politically correct and all this, kind of, stuff and be nice and want to be nice, but I really think, Madam Chair, we need to bring somebody in that's planning this in the city. It's not

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1	just	Jefferson.	It's	all	over	the	place.
---	------	------------	------	-----	------	-----	--------

And, you know, Belle Isle and it's another culture
taking place. I think we just need to be transparent
and be honest. Not that anybody is not being honest,
but I think we ought to have the information and try to
get it out on the media since we're on television and
all, and do everything we can to try to make sure this
transition goes fine. But because, again, it's
changing. And we know that it's changing.

And we know, basically, that we gone have to deal with it. But I think we ought to deal with it, with knowledge and with transparency and not, basically, try to pretend that it's not.

But I do feel like, perhaps, like the Chief said, they're not part of this, maybe. But maybe we ought to bring somebody in that is in the planning. We have a right to know what the City is planning.

You know, it's stuff going on in this city and I'm happy about a lot of it, but also, I think we need to know. And sometimes, look, if you're not -- you know, Madam Chairperson, if you're not at the table, you on the menu. And if you not at the table, you on the menu and I just think we've got to understand that we're not on the table and that we -- things are basically happening and we need to, not to say that the menu is

not okay, it's just that I like	to know what's going or
and when I'm going to have hambu	urgers and when I'm
going to have steak.	

So I just think that saying all that, I just think I've been in this city for, like, 60 years. You know, coming out of the south and I'm going to do everything I can to try to -- but I just know that the people in this community need to know that the city is changing, and, for the best, but at least we ought to be part of it. And I'm just saying that I think we ought to have someone to come in, Madam Chairperson.

COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Yes. I agree with that Reverend Holley. And we've been talking about this for the bike lanes for about maybe two, maybe three years and we still haven't gotten used to them because we're still, as commissioners, we're being told or talked to, you know, by some of our residents that they don't understand how those bike lanes work. And so, if we can't respond to those questions as Commissioners, and they do expect the Police Department to respond, or the commissioners. So I think that's an excellent idea. I think we need to bring somebody.

COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair.

COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Go ahead,

25 Commissioner.



L	COMMISSIONER BELL: Just to enlighten you, we
2	spent 45 minutes for one of those so-called experts
3	coming to our meeting at Sacred Heart last year and
1	after that meeting, we were still confused.

Just to enlighten you, I attended some of those meetings the Mayor responded to just recently and it was at the Fifth Precinct and he was on the verge of canceling this out, the bike lanes. And certain people on the staff agreed to paint the bike lanes, put the markers up and the Mayor said he would continue, but you would have an opportunity to weigh in on it. If you still continue to be unhappy, you need to let the Mayor know in the fall. That's my understanding, somewhere in the fall, he would revisit this issue because so many people were concerned about what's just been indicated.

But we had their experts and in fact, Bishop Van was part of that discussion and he led that and brought that to us. But they said they don't have bike lanes leading into Grosse Pointe. They come out of Grosse Pointe into Detroit. But that's another issue.

I don't see how you can put bike lanes. It's only two lanes on the river front, Jefferson, it gets narrower and narrower. It's an issue on Jefferson.

25 But I agree with Commissioner Holley, things have

	Page 28
1	changed and we must embrace. So, but if you're unhappy
2	with it, monitor it and you can take your complaint
3	directly to the mayor in the fall. He will hear you if
4	it's an issue that's going to continue. So speak up,
5	Detroit.
6	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you, Madam
7	Bell, Mr. Hicks.
8	MR. HICKS: Excuse me, Madam Chair, we did
9	have a lot presentation on this subject. What we can
10	do is go back and reissue to the Board, the
11	presentation and the other information that was
12	associated with this, just so that you would have a
13	quick reminder at your ready when members of the public
14	approach you.
15	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: And I think that
16	would be a good idea to have, maybe a summary of a
17	report, of the presentation. However, we have several
18	new board members that were not at the presentation and
19	it would still be helpful to have a presentation, maybe
20	an update. So I would still wish to request that.
21	MR. HICKS: Sure. Sure.
22	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: At some future
23	meeting. Thank you.
24	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I have just one other



thing.

1	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner.
2	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I brought this up
3	because people were coming to me. And as a police
4	commissioner, I want to be able to answer them
5	intelligently. So I want to know as much as I can
6	about the bike lanes. They're everywhere, every city
7	I've gone to, every state.
8	When we went to Washington, at the conference,
9	bikes lanes. So I know they're around. I just want to
10	be able to respond as a police commissioner. Thanks.
11	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you.
12	COMMISSIONER BROWN: Madam Chair.
13	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Go ahead,
14	Commissioner.
15	MR. BROWN: To the Chief.
16	I visited the training academy last week.
17	Outstanding job with your staff over there with Captain
18	Williams and your group. I was very impressed with
19	what I saw, with the things they're working with, with
20	what they have. I did ask him some things that he's
21	going to get back to me. If there's anything this
22	Board can do to make sure they have everything they
23	need to do to do their job.
24	I was really impressed with a lot of the layout,
25	with the scenario areas and everything like that. I



1	was	really	impressed	with	the	staff.
---	-----	--------	-----------	------	-----	--------

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2	And also, I don't want to talk about bike lanes,
3	but these guys on these mini bikes that's riding down
4	the street like their motorcycles, what's the deal with
5	that? How are we going to address that? There's been
6	a couple of close calls that I've seen, a couple I've
7	almost witnessed myself or been a part of, of hitting
8	these guys. They're running through red lights.
9	They're riding in the middle of the street. They don't
10	have any turn signals, brake lights, anything like that
11	and you can't even see them at night.

So is there something we can do to address this in the city? They're everywhere and they ride in, like, a pack. When I was a kid, I know I had a mini bike and y'all took it from me.

CHIEF CRAIG: Through the Chair. It's an issue, but we shouldn't forget that first of all, our pursuit policy prohibits any pursuing of those vehicles.

Take you back in time to the tragic shooting death of the young man on the 18-wheeler and that incident. So it is a problem. In our doing things, we're launching operations with using our helicopter so that when they stop, we can certainly go in and safely detain, investigate, and recover those vehicles. But



1	to see it and then go into a pursuit is not an option.
2	Our police officers are frustrated. Everyone is
3	frustrated. But it's no win to them. If we try to
4	pursue them, they're in violation of policy. It
5	certainly puts the public at risk as well as the person
6	riding that vehicle that shouldn't be on it.
7	There's been some loose conversation by a member
8	of my staff that talked about creating safe areas in
9	the city that they can take those off-road vehicles,
10	ATVs, mini bikes, and ride them there, but we don't
11	have that as of yet.
12	And so, therefore things that we are doing and
13	working on, but candidly, it's a frustration. And I
14	know it's a frustration to many who live in the city.
15	It's just, there's a limit to what we can do unless,
16	again, we use our helicopter which we have, and do.
17	And when they stop, we can direct units in. And then,
18	they can take off again and we have the same, kind of,
19	issue.
20	COMMISSIONER BROWN: Okay.
21	CHIEF CRAIG: So, it's a concern.
22	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Any other comments
23	or questions, Commissioners? Hearing none, thank you,
24	Chief for your report.



25

CHIEF CRAIG: Okay. Thank you, so much.

1	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Next on our agenda,
2	we are going to have a presentation by the Detroit
3	Public Safety Foundation. And please identify yourself
4	again for the record, Patti.
5	MS. KUKULA: Good afternoon, my name is Patti
6	Kukula, Executive Director of Detroit Public Safety
7	Foundation. Good afternoon.
8	COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.
9	MS. KUKULA: Thank you, so much for this
10	opportunity.
11	I think all of you have our financial, annual
12	financial report from 2017. I'd like to say that you
13	probably know that the Detroit Police Foundation
14	actually began the foundation in 2003. It changed its
15	name To Detroit Public Safety in 2001 and added the
16	Detroit Fire as part of our mission to support.
17	We're an independent body, a 501(c)(3) independent
18	body. One of your board members, Betty Brooks is on
19	the agenda for August 7th, to be a formal board member.
20	It goes before the full board and we expect a vote.
21	And so, we expect her to be there in August. So
22	welcome, Betty.
23	(Applause)
24	MS. KUKULA: And I would like to thank Betty,



as well. We do have two events a year. It's the Women

1	in Blue and Above and Beyond, which will be November
2	29th this year. And so, we're looking forward to
3	having more support at our wonderful event for our
4	officers and firefighters and EMS.

We, as you know, happily, we run the Detroit

Police Museum and Gift Shop as well, as our function.

That was something that we have taken on. I think the

Chief was instrumental as well, in making sure that we

had a museum. So Jeff LaMoe who is a former DPD

officer who is our curator and he is just exceptional

at what he does.

And we are very, very glad to have him. I would like to introduce Carter Jewelry, who is here. She's our director of administration, marketing, and grants. And I think she's been with us for about two and a half years, almost three years.

I've been here almost, since August of last year.

We have a very small staff. We have a part-time

bookkeeper in the office. And we also have Allen Young
is our CPA and we work very closely with them every

month. They do all of our 990 tax plans. And we work

with Plant Maria who does our annual audit. So we are
hopefully very helpful to both, the Detroit Police and

Fire.

We receive grant funding as well as our donations

1	that come in. We certainly want to support all of the
2	activities which include the training and the outreach.
3	A lot of equipment that we try and achieve and that's
4	above and beyond what the budget the City has for the
5	officers and for the fire department. So we also
6	receive funding from Skillman Foundation, Hudson Weber,
7	Department of Justice. That's mainly for our ceasefire
8	program. We do all the payroll for the ceasefire
9	piece, that's non-employees.

We also, last year, received a wonderful hundred-thousand dollar grant from GM for The Drive to Thrive. And I thank Betty Brooks. She was involved in that very early.

We also received training funding from Motorola Solutions for safe routes to school funding last year. We also operate the Secret Santa and Back to School Program that Target assists with. And also, Fire House Repairs from Home Depot and a few other things that the DPD precincts have been around with.

We tried to reach, last year, over seven thousand citizens in some of the outreach programs with things that we helped the police officers initiate.

We helped sponsor the Neighborhood Police Officer
Summit Field Day, LGBTQ Chant. And, Advisory Board had
them in July. City Camp, the Chaplain Seminar last

year. This year again, we are partnering with City
Camp, LGBT programs, and Field Summit Show Down in
Motown, Bridging the Gap, Ceasefire, Chaplain Suicide
Intervention Program, the K-9 Units. Many precincts,
the little library that's around town at some of the
precincts now. We also worked with DFD Arts and Adopt
a Family Program. The DPD Hero's Ball and many
activities.

We are the account for many of the things that go on in donations in time and as well as financial. We are very proud we have a good accountability and very transparent.

So far, in 2018, we were just recently awarded about 67,911 dollars from the DMC Foundation for equipment, mannequins and Train the Trainer Program, for the police academy.

We also received a 45,000-dollar grant from Children's Hospital Foundation of Michigan. It's the first team we've had a grant from them. This is to fund City Camp this year. So we're very proud of that partnership and we hope it will continue year after year.

We received 40,000 dollars from Chemical Bank from the banker to banker fund that the Chief initiated to have wellness and physical activity for the officers in



Page 36 1 California, the relay race in California, Bakers, 2 California, to Las Vegas. Very successful. 3 And we've been very lucky in getting other grants 4 that you might hear about in a few press releases that 5 will be coming out. So we're a small team, but we're here and happy to 6 7 support the police and fire. I'm happy to answer 8 questions. 9 (Applause) 10 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Commissioners, any 11 questions or comments? 12 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I would just like to say to you and the organization, that is simply wonderful 13 14 what you're doing. I'm so proud to be a part of this 15 and to know what we're going to help others. think it's marvelous and I wish you have continued 16 17 success with what you're doing. 18 MS. KUKULA: Thank you. I appreciate it, 19 very much. COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Bell. 20 21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, Madam Chair. First 22 of all, I want to thank you for your entertaining our concerns to have input with the Safety Foundation with 23 an additional member of someone of the Caliber, 24



25

Commissioner Betty Brooks. And she's a hard worker and

1	we appre	eciate you	entertaining	that in	terms	of y	our
2	board.	So that's	a welcoming	involvem	ent.		

And I want to say also, that the Women in Blue, it was off the hook. Your keynote speaker was just outstanding. I've been around a little while and I've heard from speakers, but she set the tone for involvement. I can't repeat what she said.

And I want to give our first Assistant Chief there, her propers. And Paula Young and all the young ladies who were recognized. I think it's sort of historic to recognize these young ladies in law enforcement. It's not the most popular job, but you're lifting it up.

And I just met two parents just last -- just this week who have daughters who have joined the police department a year ago. And that is rather unique when you go through the neighborhood and say my daughter joined, you know. And it's just really a plus, plus.

I recall the Seventh Precinct and the Twelfth

Precinct, one of our female officers joined the pro

ranks some time ago. Chief Craig, it was a welcome.

It was a challenge. But they lived up to it. And so,

I want to just commend you on your work and just

continue to do a great job. And we thank you. We

appreciate you.

1	MS. KUKULA: We're really happy and proud and
2	honored that we have the support of the Chief and his
3	staff because we want to help build the morale and be
4	there any way we can.
5	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.
6	MS. KUKULA: We've had tremendous support
7	from all of you and the staff. We're on the seventh
8	floor. Did I say seventh? Fifth floor. Fifth floor
9	any time. Stop by, the door is always open.
10	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Any other comments?
11	COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, at some
12	point, we need to recognize the annual report of the
13	DPD. It's outstanding.
14	CHIEF CRAIG: Thank you.
15	COMMISSIONER BELL: I really love the
16	picture. It was worth waiting on. I haven't went
17	through it yet, but just on the cover, it's a plus.
18	These two young ladies here, and with the first
19	Assistant Chief and you, and Willie Bell there, too. I
20	can see my Halo.
21	CHIEF CRAIG: Oh, you are there?
22	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.
23	(Applause)
24	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you,



Ms. Kukula. And I might add to Commissioner Bell's

1	comments, very good information for the police
2	commission to have as well as the officers in the
3	community. And we look forward to that report every
4	year because it is so it has such great information
5	So thank you for that.
6	Any other comments or questions? If not, then are
7	there any police commissions standing or ad ha
8	committee reports? Hearing none, we'll go to the
9	report from the Secretary.
10	MR. HICKS: Thank you, Madam Chair. I don't
11	have any particular item to report on. There may be
12	some questions later on when we get to the process in
13	verifying the promotions that were sent by the Chief.
14	But other than that, we did include in the
15	information sent out to the Board, a list of Michigan
16	State Police Troopers who were signed throughout the
17	City, as a liaison, essentially, into our districts.
18	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. Is
19	there any old business to come before the Board?
20	Hearing none, new business. Commissioner Bell, will
21	you please lead us in this agenda item?
22	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes. Madam Chair, you
23	already indicated in your report, that we received
24	communication from Chief Craig in reference to



25

promotion in rank of Lieutenants and Sergeants and Mr.

1	Hicks and stail went through a thorough process and
2	they met all the criteria.
3	First of all, the budget and all the other reviews
4	in terms of background, resume, and all that. So the
5	recommendation should go forward and the recommendation
6	to promotion to rank a Lieutenant. And I'm going to
7	share with the community and also, you have your report
8	before you, Commissioners, from the sergeant rank would
9	be Sergeant Bryan Bowser, Sergeant if you're here,
LO	we can acknowledge, but perhaps, I just continue if
1	you're not here. If here, you can stand if you're
12	here.
13	Sergeant Gerry Johnson, is that Jr.?
4	UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
15	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yeah, I knew his father.
16	Okay. Sergeant James Demps. Sergeant Kimberly, is
17	that Gabriel?
18	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Uh-huh.
L9	COMMISSIONER BELL: Sergeant Lawrence Purifoy
20	and Sergeant Tereasa E. Duncan.
21	And to the rank of Sergeants, Detective Joanne E.
22	Wright, Corporal Abery Thomas, Police Officer Sarah K.
23	Monti. Is that family, too? That name sounds
24	familiar.
25	Okay. Thank you. Police Officer Danielle K.



Page 41 1 Murray; Police Officer Julie L. Krupinski; is that 2 close? Detective Reginald Beasley; neighborhood Police 3 Officer; Steven A. Shank. That's going to be a loss 4 there. They love their Neighborhood Police Officer. 5 Police Officer Ronald Kidd; and Police Officer Delicia L. Smith (Ponder); and Police Officer Daniel E. Austin; 6 7 and Corporal Gregory Sawmiller; and Police Officer 8 Robert Rowe; Police Officer Timothy E. Jones; Police 9 Officer Brandon R. Shortridge; and Police Officer 10 Richard J. Farrell. 11 Madam Chair, I move and proceed the Sergeants for 12 the rank of Lieutenants and also Detectives for the rank of Sergeants. So moved. 13 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I second. 14 15 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Can I just get a 16 clarification? Do we need a motion for each promotion? 17 MR. HICKS: No, Madam Chair. 18 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Just the body. 19 Okay. It's been moved and seconded. Is there any discussion? 20 21 MR. DAVIS: Discussion. Okay. So what if 22 there's one of these that I want to vote against? MR. HICKS: Madam Chair, if there's any 23 exception by the board member, they would simply tell 24 us who that member is and we would note it in the 25



Page 42 record. You could request a vote of the entire body.

But if it's only one person that might have the objection, we would just simply note it in the record.

COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Go ahead,

5 Commissioner.

1

2

3

4

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

22

23

24

6 MR. DAVIS: Okay. I'll vote against Police 7 Officer Daniel Austin.

8 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Any other
9 discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor, indicate
10 by saying aye. Opposed?

Okay. And for the record, yours will be on the record.

MR. HICKS: Madam Chair, with all of the members voting, with the one exception, even in the case of the one exception, it did not fall below the threshold that was necessary in order to group the promotions. So as it stands, for the record, all of the individuals that are listed in the motion were approved by your body.

20 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you for that classification. Commissioner Bell.

COMMISSIONER BELL: Well, I'm not somewhat clear. I assume that you're saying Police Officer Daniel Austin goes forward?

MR. HICKS: Yes.



Page 43 1 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: There was no objection, 2 no. 3 MR. HICKS: Yes. It was just a notation to 4 the record. 5 COMMISSIONER BELL: It was just a notation? MR. HICKS: Right. 6 7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. Thank you. I just 8 wanted to make sure. 9 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Okay. The motion 10 carries for all promotions that were presented before the Board. Thank you, Commissioners. 11 12 (Motion approved) COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair. 13 14 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Oh, go ahead. COMMISSIONER BELL: I just want to commend 15 all these members who have just been newly named. We 16 wish them all success in their careers. And there's a 17 chief commitment to timely promotions and I can 18 19 appreciate this and the Board can appreciate that. We look forward to them attending class as soon as 20 21 possible and receiving their badge for Lieutenant and 22 Sergeant. Thank you. 23 CHIEF CRAIG: Thank you. 24 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you, Chief.



Thank You, Commissioner.

1	Announcements, the next meeting will be Thursday,
2	June 28th here at 3:00 p.m. at the Detroit Public
3	Safety Headquarters, 1301 Third Street. The next
4	community meeting will be Thursday, July 12th at 6:30.
5	It will be at the Tenth Precinct at the Joseph Walker
6	Williams Center located at 8431 Rosa Parks.
7	And now, are there oral communications, Mr. Brown?
8	MR. BROWN: Yes, Madam Chair, I currently
9	have four cards. The first speaker will be Mr. Peter
10	Rhoades followed by Ms. Rondalyn Cash.
11	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: How are you?
12	MR. RHOADES: Doing good. My name is Peter
13	Rhoades. I'm a resident. I've been here many times
14	before. In fact, I started coming many years ago
15	because the Police Department was giving tickets to
16	individual gas station attendants and I thought that
17	may be a bad procedure.
18	I'm here today because there's a gas station at
19	4125 West 8 Mile Road that's at the intersection of 8
20	Mile and Livernois and recently, it came to the
21	attention of City Council Member, Roy McAllister, Jr.,
22	because of neighborhood complaints.
23	Just as an aside, when a City Council member goes
24	to a gas station to look at all the debris outside and
25	the dirty conditions inside, the sales clerk behind the

1	counter should probably not be selling loose cigarettes
2	to the customers. That's probably a bad idea.
3	But I'm bringing it to the attention of the
4	Detroit Police Department because they might want to
5	contact the Detroit Building Safety Engineering
6	Department Licensing Center because when this gas
7	station as well as all the other gas stations come up
8	for renewal at the end of August, this one can be
9	pointed out that there should be a show cause hearing
10	in front of the independent show cause hearing officer
11	concerning the activities going on there. And, if
12	appropriate, show cause hearing officer can revoke or
13	suspend their license. And that's the proper way.
14	Please, don't give tickets to the individual
15	behind the counter for failure to have a business
16	license. Instead, go after the manager or the owner
17	and have their license revoked. Thank you, very much.
18	COMMISSIONER BURCH: I agree.
19	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.
20	DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: Deputy Chief
21	Bettison, for the record. I've met with Councilman
22	McCalister. I already met with B.C., working on it,
23	with connection with the Detroit Police Department,
24	have responded to that particular gas station. And, we
25	sent undercover officers in there. They bought



1	loosies, a ticket was issued.
2	So B.C. and DPD officers working together on it
3	and doing exactly what Mr. Rhoades said. So that's the
4	strategy and the plan and not only that, but just for
5	the record as well, gas stations, liquor stores, places
6	that are dirty, selling loose cigarettes, per
7	violation, given the directive of Chief Craig, we are
8	going after them.
9	MR. BROWN: Ms. Cash followed by Ms. Faith.
10	MS. CASH: Hello everyone, I lost my father
11	
12	MR. BROWN: Could you please state your name?
13	MS. CASH: Oh, yes. Rondalyn Cash from
14	Memphis, Tennessee.
15	I lost my father and uncle here last year,
16	February 1, 2017. I spoke with different detectives,
17	different guys. My mom saw the whole thing, the whole
18	the whole crime and she gave, you know, every
19	detective everything she know. I got
20	I called plenty of times. One of the detectives
21	talked about me to a family member in another city.
22	They mistreated me, lied, continuously lied to me. I
23	lost my dad and uncle. They were twin brothers.
24	My dad was gone from me 20 years and I only spent
25	five years with him and I feel like that somebody can



1	do something. I mean, I've provided them so much
2	information. Somebody can help me do something. I
3	mean, help me. If it was them, just be in my shoes for
4	one second, one minute and think about it. And I just
5	wanted to say, like, I think everything my step dad
6	worked for the sheriff department 29 years. And I
7	mean, I know how it goes and I was told that
8	Well, I know that the getaway driver was a female.
9	Her granddad worked for the police department. I don't
10	know if it was a favor or whatever, but nothing has
11	been done. And I mean, when I say, we have all the
12	evidence, everything, it's just continuously lies to
13	me. It hurts me. There's nothing been done about this
14	and there's not a day goes about that I don't think
15	about my dad and uncle. And I just want somebody to
16	help me do something about this. And that's all.
17	Thank you.
18	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Chief, did
19	you want to say something?
20	CHIEF CRAIG: Yes.
21	Captain, do you have an update on this case?
22	UNIDENTIFIED CAPTAIN: I will have to get the
23	update and get the information.
24	CHIEF CRAIG: Are you familiar with that?



UNIDENTIFIED CAPTAIN: No, I'm not, sir.

1	CHIEF CRAIG: Okay. The Captain will assist
2	you with that. He runs the homicide here.
3	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you.
4	MR. BROWN: Ms. Faith, followed by Ms. Sharon
5	Harper Lee.
6	MS. FAITH: Good evening, everyone. My name
7	is Ms. Faith. And through this Chair, I just wanted to
8	comment about the babies being put back with their
9	families. I was a little baby myself when my mama
10	passed away and I know how it feels. I never know what
11	she looked like, at all. So I'm glad for that, that
12	the babies are back with their families.
13	So I wanted to comment on the seniors being
14	humanely treated. They were talked to and told about,
15	you know, what things they did that was not acceptable
16	or wrong and then they cooperated and treated them
17	well, gave them refreshing water, treated them very
18	humanely. And for that, I'm very, very pleased to see
19	that the seniors were taken care of.
20	And also, oh, my memory is escaping me. As you
21	get old, you know, that's one of the things that goes.
22	I'm thankful for the things that come up, that blessed
23	me so much to see you all today.
24	And Commissioner Brooks, my hat goes off to you in

the things you're doing with the training and

1	recruiting and the different young folks that's coming
2	on. And Commissioner Burch, I want to commend you
3	also, for the work you're doing in the different
4	precincts and things. And commend you for all of the
5	good I do see.
6	And also, Commissioner Holley, the few free to
7	speak here, whatever you want to say, and the
8	understanding that comes and follows. And, wonderful
9	to see.
10	And, I know I only have one minute left, but I
11	have a thing I want to request from the chaplains and
12	all of y'all. I had I found out I have an enlarged
13	heart and so, just be praying for me, my health be
14	restored. I will continue to go forward and not
15	regress back, as you all have taught me by your precept
16	and example. Thank you for letting me speak.
17	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you,
18	Ms. Faith. We will definitely be praying for you.
19	Thank you, so much.
20	MR. BROWN: Ms. Harper Lee, followed by
21	Ms. Michelle George.
22	MS. HARPER LEE: Good afternoon, Chief Craig
23	and Commissioners. I just wanted to come and tell you
24	guys, that my husband and I are still in our house on



Parkside. I'm a teacher with a masters and he's a

## 6/21/2018

retired FEO engineer who got hurt on the job. And his
health is deteriorating even more with his feet because
he has neuropathy. This young lady at 18255, I won't
say her name, she is politically connected with the
City, they do have money, some, I guess. But she is
just horrible, and just stalking us, and almost running
us off the road and having her, quote on quote, people,
homies There's nothing we can do to stop her?

Page 50

We need some control in the University District for the seniors, if nothing else. And as the gentleman stated here, Mr. Brown, the go cart things. I live on Parkside and people are doing, 50, 80, 90 miles an hour. I'm telling you, someone was in a Camaro and they just went straight through to 7 Mile.

And we've got no babies and gentrification is okay. But we shouldn't be forced or try to be forced because I'm not going anywhere. You shouldn't be forced to try to leave your home when you've invested all that money.

I just want to show you, I have this book and another one in the car of this woman of police officers at the Twelfth Precinct, who allowed her to make false police reports. Commander Sims, she's amazing, but she's overwhelmed. So her detectives, whether it's Lee or Bledsoe. Fitzgerald who told me, move.

1	Somebody called and left a message on my husband
2	phone today that said move. We're not going nowhere.
3	That's ridiculous. All our money is in our home until
4	we're ready to go, and we should be ready to go. I'm
5	the same age you are or maybe a little close to it. I
6	know people you went to school with. Or close to it.
7	So all of us are over 40. Forty, 50, okay?
8	Who doesn't want to go off your porch because two
9	women are ready to jump on you? That's what happened
10	to me with my daughter last year. Please, please, I
11	don't care how politically connected she is. 18255
12	needs to be reprimanded. An automatic cease and
13	desist. This is ridiculous.
14	I will be at the mayor's meeting because I see I'm
15	not getting help in Detroit. I thank the police
16	officers that are doing a wonderful job and the police
17	commissioners who hear our voices. That's why you're
18	here. And, we pay taxes. Thank you.
19	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you.
20	MR. BROWN: Ms. Michelle George followed by
21	Mr. Eric Blount.
22	MS. GEORGE: Good afternoon, Commissioners
23	and to Chief Craig.
24	COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.
25	MS. GEORGE: I wanted to state, just sharing



1	information as usual. Last week, maybe two weeks ago,
2	there was a zoning hearing about the marijuana
3	dispensaries that were in the district. And they were
4	discussing what they were going to do with some of the
5	money if if they have those dispensaries. Which, of
6	course, we're fighting that because this is not a
7	debate about if the medical marijuana helps people with
8	health issues. We know that.

But the young lady from the Law Department mentioned that some of the money from the funding will go to the Wayne County Sheriff's and zero to the Detroit Police Department. And I don't understand that. So, we're going to be on her about that, Chief Craig. I just don't understand that.

Also, they mentioned some of the money will go to show Detroiters how to grow marijuana. So I did bring that up, to put that into their communities. That's why I joined the lecture. I missed a lecture, but I heard the director speak on this before. The structure racism, equity, schools and communities. And that's the reason why, just for that reason.

But I'm going to be -- we're going to be on that, with that. Because money should go, if it's going to benefit that, but it goes to Wayne County.

Also, I want you to keep your eyes out. The House

Page 53

just passed a billed called The Sista Act, that is
going to give Attorney General Jeff Sessions
unprecedented power on the war of drugs. Now, I know
it has a lot to do with the opioid crisis. But it also
is going to impact people of color. And I think it's
going to have to do with the issues of these medical
marijuana dispensaries.

Like I told them at the zoning hearing, we saw how crack ravished our neighborhoods back in the 80's. And then you want to have dispensaries in an impoverished city, that Wall Street just wrote an article about, "The Worst City to Live In."

That's structure of racism that we have to fight on that. But we're going to keep an eye because when you give Attorney General Jeff Sessions power, it's going to impact people of color and it's going to come into the neighborhood. So, but I will keep a close eye. It's going to go to the Senate next week, but it was approved by the House.

Also, Chief Craig, I want to let you know, I don't know if your Deputy Chief told you this, Stabenow is working on getting mental health facilities in the community. So working on that and I think that's it. Okay. Thanks.

COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. Very

1	good information.					
2	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Very good.					
3	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Any questions or					
4	comments, Commissioners?					
5	MR. BROWN: One more speaker, Eric Blount.					
6	MR. BLOUNT: Good afternoon, Board and to the					
7	Chief.					
8	COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.					
9	MR. BLOUNT: For the record, my name is Eric					
10	Blount, a lifelong Detroiter. This week, I've					
11	experienced the best and some of the worst in policing.					
12	I'm a member of the Poor People's Campaign. I					
13	found myself behind the blockade that the police had					
14	constructed in front of Campus Martius. I did not					
15	intend to be inside the blockade. But when I was, I					
16	looked around and realized how closely I was to the					
17	action.					
18	The police were very, very professional and acted					
19	with wisdom and knowledge and compassion. We are a					
20	nonviolent civil disobedient way of protesting. So we					
21	don't mean to be violent in anyway, and thank God we					
22	weren't.					
23	One of the worse that I saw was just yesterday at					
24	the Water Board Meeting. Some of you were there.					
25	Commissioner Davis was there when someone was					



Page 55

passionate and concerned about water shutoffs, this woman was pushed and pulled in a very inhumane way. I chastised Gary Brown, even though he's no longer a police officer, he has that experience. I chastised him for not stepping up and stepping in to make sure that even though people may not have liked what she said and did, just arrest her or not, but don't push and pull on people, left and right.

Lastly, not just the zero-tolerance policies of our cruel president, I would like to know again, and I've mentioned this before, Chief Craig, as the Chief of Law Enforcement Officer of this city, we need to know where you stand as far as this city being a sanctuary city. We need to know where the Mayor stands as far as this city being a sanctuary city. And know for sure, Chief Craig, the answer to this question is binary. It's either yes or no. There is no lukewarm. There is no maybe to it. We need to know and we need to know now. Thank you.

CHIEF CRAIG: Through the Chair. I've gone on record with my position which is supported by the City. We are not, and I'm going to -- it's not a yes or no answer. I'll just be clear that we are not in the business of stopping individuals and asking their immigration status. So we don't perform that type of



1	work.
2	However, if there's someone who is involved in a
3	violent crime who happens to be here illegally in this
4	country, we will cooperate with the federal
5	authorities. I've said that before. That is the
6	City's position and it's consistent.
7	MR. BLOUNT: Thank you.
8	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. Thank
9	you, Chief.
10	MR. BROWN: Madam Chair, that was your last
11	speaker.
12	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Yes.
13	MR. DAVIS: I have a comment. Just for
14	general information purposes, the lady who was touched
15	at the Water Board Meeting was not touched by a Detroit
16	police officer. Some people sometimes think that
17	Detroit water and sewage security is Detroit Police.
18	They are not. There was some Detroit police officers
19	there. Just a comment for people to know.
20	CHIEF CRAIG: Through the Chair, thank you
21	Commissioner Davis.
22	SPEAKER: I stand corrected.
23	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Davis,
24	I'm sorry, just clarification, did you say there was
25	not police officers?



1	MR. DAVIS: There was police officers.
2	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Okay. But the ones
3	who did it weren't.
4	MR. DAVIS: She was touched inappropriately
5	by Detroit water and sewage security people, but there
6	was no inappropriate contact by any Detroit police
7	officers.
8	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: All right. Thank
9	you.
10	MR. BLOUNT: I thank you for that correction
11	because in the mix of it all, with who is or isn't, we
12	don't know who is or isn't.
13	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: And it happens a
14	lot where the Detroit Police are identified and they're
15	not even there. Thank you for that clarification.
16	Commissioner Burch, did you have a comment?
17	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes. I wanted to talk
18	about, if you remember, I brought up about The Police
19	Keep Detroit Beautiful signs. That I requested these
20	signs be put in the location of our gas stations and we
21	start some, kind of, program asking these gas stations,
22	not only asking, but really telling them, they need to
23	beautify their areas with flowers or some, kind of,
24	class. Something to beautify because I don't think we
25	should take what the gas stations give to our citizens

1	in I	Detroit	and	when	you	go	in	the	suburbs,	they	are	all
2	nice	e and no	eat.									

So that's why I said why can't we just inform,
especially the ones with the green light, since they're
part of this, Chief, why can't they start beautifying
their grounds around their gas stations? That was
given to Detroit Edison. Please Keep Detroit Beautiful
signs.

CHIEF CRAIG: Through the Chair. I will tell you that I'm not going to demand that a gas station put up a sign. That's private property, number one.

Secondly, we started the green light, as you may know, many years ago. In it's infancy, it was designed to identify those locations that were viewed as safe havens because they were clean. They didn't allow loitering. And so, that was the beginning.

COMMISSIONER BURCH: Right.

evolve, I think we're at 350 locations now, the vast majority of them are clean. We work directly with the owners. The community, not the Detroit Police

Department, when they want a green light Detroit gas station in their neighborhood, they go out, the community members, basically demand, we want it or we will take our business elsewhere. And we support

1	community members who do that.
2	We don't directly engage in that, kind of,
3	activity. But we do work with the owners who are green
4	light. We will work with the owners who are not green
5	light. And if those dirty gas stations that are
6	selling loosies and we become aware of it, we will take
7	appropriate action. That's something we talk about
8	often.
9	But I am not going to direct gas stations to put
10	signs on property. It's just not proper.
11	COMMISSIONER BURCH: No, I didn't mean that.
12	I didn't mean make them do it. I'm just saying these
13	signs are already around the City of Detroit.
14	CHIEF CRAIG: If a business owner wants to
15	place a sign up, that's fine. We love it.
16	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay.
17	CHIEF CRAIG: But I'm not going to I'm
18	more concerned about the safety. And I also know that
19	the dirty location breeds criminality.
20	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Correct.
21	CHIEF CRAIG: So we'll approach it from
22	there. We will assess and address criminal complaints
23	coming out of the location. And so, we know, recently,
24	as recent as early this morning, there was a murder at



a gas station. We now know that the person may have

# 6/21/2018

	Page 60
1	been involved in the selling of drugs at that location.
2	We also want to know if that person was selling drugs,
3	did management know about it? And if so, what did they
4	do about it? And, if they did nothing.
5	So we're getting ready to take a look at that gas
6	station, and, you know, if it meets our scrutiny in
7	terms of, it's dirty, they're selling loosies, what
8	have you, allowing drug selling, we will take
9	appropriate action.
10	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay. Thank you. Just
11	wanted to know if we have your support as block clubs
12	when we go to the gas station.
13	CHIEF CRAIG: Through the Chair. You've had
14	our support from day one. I think we have done, maybe,
15	slightly above our average job, Todd Bettison.
16	CHIEF DEPUTY BETTISON: I think so.
17	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you,
18	Commissioner. Thank you, Chief.
19	CHIEF CRAIG: Thank you.
20	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Is there any other?
21	COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, I have one
22	comment. The young lady that spoke about her father
23	and her uncle, she traveled from Memphis, Tennessee. I
24	spoke with her. And would you have homicide, just give
25	us a little notation or note to the board secretary of



1	you know, they traveled from Memphis, Tennessee,
2	really concerned. So if you could share, at some point
3	in time, just a little note to the Secretary, he will
4	share it with us?
5	CHIEF CRAIG: Through the Chair. We will
6	definitely make sure we do that. And also, one of the
7	things we've implemented, I take it very seriously.
8	Whenever we talk about family members of homicide
9	victims, one thing that didn't occur that occurs on a
10	routine basis now and certainly, Commander Bryant can
11	speak to that, is that we touch every family member
12	because we know how important it is to do that. There
13	was a time that there were murders occurring and
14	sometimes the family member never even met the
15	detective. That does not happen today.
16	COMMANDER BRYANT: Hi, Commander Bryant for
17	the record. Yes, we actually have her upstairs right
18	now meeting with the detectives. And I just wanted to
19	point out that the detective that she was referring to
20	that she had the bad experience with no longer works at
21	homicide. So we have a new detective that took that
22	detective's case and that detective is working on her
23	case.
24	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you, very
25	much. Appreciate that.



## 6/21/2018

Page 62 Any other business to come before the Board? COMMISSIONER BELL: So moved, ma'am. No other business, for adjournment. COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: It's been moved and seconded. All those in favor, signify by saying aye. (Motion carried) COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you all for your attendance and have a good evening. (The proceeding was adjourned at 4:17 p.m.) 



1	CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY
2	
3	STATE OF MICHIGAN )
4	) SS
5	COUNTY OF MACOMB )
6	
7	I, Shacara V. Mapp, Certified Shorthand
8	Reporter, a Notary Public in and for the above county
9	and state, do hereby certify that the above deposition
10	was taken before me at the time and place hereinbefore
11	set forth; that the witness was by me first duly sworn
12	to testify to the truth, and nothing but the truth;
13	that the foregoing questions asked and answers made by
14	the witness were duly recorded by me stenographically
15	and reduced to computer transcription; that this is a
16	true, full and correct transcript of my stenographic
17	notes so taken; and that I am not related to, nor of
18	counsel to either party, nor interested in the event of
19	this cause.
20	Shann Shukh was
21	Muchal V. II what
22	Shacara V. Mapp, CSR-9305
23	Notary Public,
24	Macomb County, Michigan



25 My Commission expires: 07-25-2024

A
Abery 40:22
<b>able</b> 29:4,10
<b>academy</b> 29:16
35:16
acceptable 48:15
accomplishments
11:7
account 35:9
accountability
10:12 35:11
achieve 34:3
acknowledge
40:10
<b>act</b> 12:8,10 13:8
53:1
<b>acted</b> 54:18
action 10:17
54:17 59:7
60:9
actions 20:11
activities 15:17
19:5 34:2 35:8
45:11
activity 11:20
35:25 59:3
acts 17:21
<b>ad</b> 39:7
<b>add</b> 12:3 38:25
<b>added</b> 32:15
additional 7:18
19:13 36:24
address 12:20
13:11 19:22
30:5,12 59:22 adequate 14:13
adequate 14:13
adjourned 62:9
adjournment 62:3
adjusted 22:13
administration
13:24 33:14
<b>Adopt</b> 35:6
adults 14:14
advance 5:19
<b>advice</b> 13:13
advising 11:13
Advisory 34:24
afford 5:13
afraid 24:13 afternoon 4:5,6
5:2,10 9:2,3
9:13,14 16:2,4
J.T. TO.7.4

17.1 0 22.5 7
17:1,2 32:5,7 32:8 49:22
51:22,24 54:6
51.22,24 54.6
<b>age</b> 18:7 51:5
agenda 6:1,2
7:11 32:1,19
39:21
ago 17:3 37:16
37:21 44:14
ago 17:3 37:16 37:21 44:14 52:1 58:13
<b>agree</b> 26:12
27:25 45:18
agreeable 5:21
agreed 27:9
<b>ahead</b> 17:7 26:24
29:13 42:4
43:14
Allen 33:19
allow 58:15
<b>allowed</b> 18:23 50:22
allowing 60:8
allows 10:12
alternative
13:18
amazing 19:9
50:23
<b>Amen</b> 5:22
America 15:1
19:8 23:22
Announcements
44:1
<b>annual</b> 32:11
33:22 38:12
answer 23:9 29:4
36:7 55:16,23
answers 63:13
<pre>anticipate 16:13 anybody 8:7 25:4</pre>
anyway 54:21
appeal 10:13
appear 10.13
appearance 18:22
<pre>appearance 18:22 Applause 15:6</pre>
<b>Applause</b> 15:6 32:23 36:9
<pre>appearance 18:22 Applause 15:6   32:23   36:9   38:23</pre>
<pre>appearance 18:22 Applause 15:6   32:23   36:9   38:23 appreciate 36:18</pre>
<pre>appearance 18:22 Applause 15:6   32:23  36:9   38:23 appreciate 36:18   37:1,25  43:19   43:19  61:25</pre>
<pre>appearance 18:22 Applause 15:6   32:23  36:9   38:23 appreciate 36:18   37:1,25  43:19   43:19  61:25 appreciated</pre>
<pre>appearance 18:22 Applause 15:6   32:23  36:9   38:23 appreciate 36:18   37:1,25  43:19   43:19  61:25</pre>

59:21	
appropriate	
10:24 18:20	
45:12 59:7	
60:9	
Approval 6:1	
<b>approve</b> 6:2,13	
approved 42:19	
43:12 53:19	
Approximate	
16:25	
area 11:14 17:1	
20:3,6,23 22:	3
22:8 23:11	
areas 14:24	
29:25 31:8	
57:23	
arrest 16:21	
17:22 18:2,4	
20:17 55:7	
arrested 11:14	
17:19 18:6	
arrests 16:23	
arrival 17:12	
article 14:11	
53:11	
<b>Arts</b> 35:6	
Arts 35.0	
<b>aside</b> 44:23	2
<b>aside</b> 44:23 <b>asked</b> 11:19 12:	3
<b>aside</b> 44:23 <b>asked</b> 11:19 12: 63:13	3
<pre>aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24</pre>	3
<pre>aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24</pre>	3
<pre>aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22</pre>	3
<pre>aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22</pre>	3
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1	3
<pre>aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23</pre>	3
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1	3
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8	3
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19	3
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17	
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1	
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23	
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23	
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17	2
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3,	2
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24	2
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24 attendance 10:2	2
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24 attendance 10:2 16:17 62:8	22
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24 attendance 10:2 16:17 62:8	22
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24 attendance 10:2 16:17 62:8 attendants 44:1	22
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24 attendance 10:2 16:17 62:8 attendants 44:1 attended 16:15	22
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24 attendance 10:2 16:17 62:8 attendants 44:1 attended 16:15 27:5	22
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24 attendance 10:2 16:17 62:8 attendants 44:1 attended 16:15 27:5 attending 4:12	22
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24 attendance 10:2 16:17 62:8 attendants 44:1 attended 16:15 27:5	22
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24 attendance 10:2 16:17 62:8 attendants 44:1 attended 16:15 27:5 attending 4:12 43:20	22
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24 attendance 10:2 16:17 62:8 attendants 44:1 attended 16:15 27:5 attending 4:12 43:20 attention 10:15	22
aside 44:23 asked 11:19 12: 63:13 asking 55:24 57:21,22 assess 59:22 assist 48:1 Assistant 7:23 7:25 8:3,3,8 37:8 38:19 assists 34:17 associated 28:1 assume 42:23 asylum 13:15,17 At-Large 2:2,3, 4:20,24 attendance 10:2 16:17 62:8 attendants 44:1 attended 16:15 27:5 attending 4:12 43:20	22

	rage 1
44:21 45 attorney 8 53:2,15	3:23
ATVs 31:10	
audience	
audio/vis	ual
8:16	
<b>audit</b> 33:2	
August 32	
33:17 45	
Austin 41:	6 42:7
42:24	. 4 . 1 1
authored 1	
authoriti	
automatic	
average 60	
awarded 35	5:13
aware 21:2	20 59:6
aye 6:8,17	/ 15:22
42:10 62	2:5
В	
<b>B.C</b> 45:22	46:2
babies 48	
50:15	- ,
<b>baby</b> 48:9	
<b>back</b> 8:21	12:25
12:25 18	
20:4 28:	
29:21 30	):20
34:16 48	3:8,12
49:15 53	3:9
backgroun	
backup 22	
<b>bad</b> 44:17	
61:20	

badge 43:21
Bakers 36:1
Ball 35:7

Bank 35:23 banker 35:24,24

**Banks** 9:5

58:24 **basis** 61:10 **Bates** 11:14

Beasley 41:2

banner 17:24 Baron 18:17 based 20:2,10 basic 15:3 basically 17:9 25:10,12,24

**approach** 28:14

<b>Beautiful</b> 57:19 58:7
beautify 57:23 57:24
beautifying 58:5 began 32:14 58:18
beginning 13:2 58:16
behalf 4:11 7:12 believe 16:22
18:19
Bell 2:4 4:21,21
6:6,15 12:9 15:12,16 19:3
15:12,16 19:3 19:17,19 21:3
26:23 27:1 28:7 36:20,21
38:5,11,15,19
38:22 39:20,22 40:15,19 42:21
42:22 43:5,7
43:13,15 45:19 60:21 62:2
<b>Bell's</b> 38:25
<b>Belle</b> 25:2 <b>benefit</b> 52:24
<b>best</b> 10:4 26:9
54:11 <b>Bettison</b> 7:17,20
7:23,25 8:3,4
8:8 19:25,25 22:14 45:20,21
60:15,16
Betty 32:18,22 32:24 34:12
36:25
beyond 11:18 33:1 34:4
<b>bicycle</b> 21:10,16
23:12 bicycles 22:5
bicyclists 23:11
big 23:22 bike 22:24 23:2
23:4 26:14,18
27:8,9,19,22 29:6 30:2,14
bikes 23:5 24:4
bikes 23:5 24:4 24:12,12,20,21 29:9 30:3
31:10

<pre>billed 53:</pre>	1
<pre>binary 55: Bishop 27:</pre>	17
Bishop 27:	17
Bledsoe 50	1:25
bless 5:18	}
blessed 48	
block 60:1 blockade 5	.⊥ :⊿•1२
54:15	74.13
blocked 17	:22
18:5	
${\bf blocking}\ 1$	
Blossom 8:	22
11:8	01
<b>Blount</b> 51: 54:5,6,9	
F6.7 F7.	1 0
<b>Blue</b> 33:1	37:3
board 1:1	2:11
4:11 5:1	6 7:12
7:15 8:1	1,23
9:2,16,2 10:17 11	4 1U:6
Blue 33:1 board 1:1 4:11 5:1 7:15 8:1 9:2,16,2 10:17 11 11:11,23	12:4
12:7,17,	20
12:7,17, 14:16 15	5:2
16:1,3 1	.8:25
28:10,18	3 29:22
32:18,19	,20
34:24 37 39:15,19	
43:11,19	54:6
54:24 56	5:15
60:25 62	2:1
Board's 12	2:12
boarders 1	
body 32:17	
41:18 42 <b>book</b> 50:20	.•⊥,⊥9 )
bookkeepe	<b>r</b> 33:19
border 12:	15
borders 13	3:5
bought 45:	25
Bowser 40:	9
boy 14:11 brake 30:1	Λ
Brandon 41	
breeds 59:	
<pre>Bridging 3</pre>	35:3
<b>bring</b> 10:6	24:5
24:7,24	
26:22 52	2:16

bringing 45:3
brochure 21:21
Brooks 2:3 4:23 4:24 21:6,7,8 21:24 22:20,23
4:24 21:6,7,8
21:24 22:20,23
28:24 29:2
32:18 34:12
32:18 34:12 36:25 48:24
54:2
brothers 46:23
brought 27:18
29:2 57:18
Brown 2:5 10
Brown 2:5,10 4:18,19 6:3,14
8:18 13:1
15:14 18 29:12
20:15 21:20
15:14,18 29:12 29:15 31:20 44:7,8 46:9,12
48:4 49:20
FO:11 F1:20
50:11 51:20 54:5 55:3
56:10
Bryan 40:9
Bryant 61:10,16
61:16
budget 34:4 40:3
build 38:3
building 17:14
17:23 45:5
Burch 2:6 4:25
5:1 22:21,22
36:12 45:18
49:2 57:16,17 58:17 59:11,16
58:17 59:11,16
59:20 60:10
bus 18:13 22:7,7
business 5:25
12:9 16:19
39:19,20 45:15
55:24 58:25 59:14 62:1,3
<b>busy</b> 24:13
byproduct 23:12

# Cable 4:13 Caliber 36:24 California 36:1 36:1,2 call 10:15 14:16 called 46:20 51:1 53:1

Calloway 9:6 calls 30:6 **Camaro** 50:13 camera 18:3 Camp 34:25 35:2 35:20 Campaign 11:21 54:12 Campus 17:15,23 18:11 54:14 cancel 10:22,25 15:13 canceling 27:8 cancellation 10:23 15:10 candidly 31:13 Captain 29:17 47:21,22,25 48:1 car 50:21 card 12:24 13:2 cards 12:24 44:9 care 6:1 18:9 48:19 51:11 careers 43:17 **carried** 6:10,19 15:23 62:6 carries 15:22 43:10 Cars 16:16 cart 50:11 Carter 4:9 33:13 **case** 12:2 42:15 47:21 61:22,23 Cash 44:10 46:9 46:10,13,13 cause 45:9,10,12 63:19 **cease** 51:12 ceasefire 34:7,8 35:3 celebration 10:21 cells 18:20 **center** 18:17,24 44:6 45:6 certain 27:8 certainly 21:21 22:13 23:21 30:24 31:5

34:1 61:10

**CERTIFICATE** 63:1



Certified 63:7 certify 63:9 Chair 4:7 5:4 8:12 15:12 16:2 19:3,11 21:3 23:7,8 24:24 26:23 28:8 29:12 30:16 36:21 38:11 39:10,22 41:11,17,23 42:13 43:13 44:8 48:7 55:20 56:10,20 58:9 60:13,21
61:5
<pre>chairing 4:9 Chairperson 4:9</pre>
25:21 26:11
Chairperson's
7:11
challenge 37:22
challenges 16:10
changed 28:1
32:14
changing 24:2,16
25:9,9 26:8 Chant 34:24
Chaplain 5:6,7,9
5:24 34:25
35:3
chaplains 49:11
chastised 55:3,4
Chemical 35:23
<pre>chief 3:8,9 7:21</pre>
7:23,25,25 8:3
8:4,8 9:10,10
9:12,14 10:2
12:3,4 15:25 16:2,5,25
16:2,5,25
18:17,25 19:13
19:17,18,20,25 19:25 21:9,18
19.25 21.9,18
21:25 22:14 23:7 24:1,6,17
25:14 29:15
25:14 29:15 30:16 31:21,24 31:25 33:8 35:24 37:8,21 38:2,14,19,21
31:25 33:8
35:24 37:8,21
38:2,14,19,21
39:13,24 43:18
43:23,24 45:20

45:20 46:7 47:18,20,24 48:1 49:22 51:23 52:13 53:20,21 54:7 55:11,11,16,20 56:9,20 58:5,9 58:18 59:14,17 59:21 60:13,16 60:18,19 61:5 Chief's 12:8,10 children 12:14 13:21 14:2,5,8 14:12,14,18,20 Children's 35:18 Christmas 9:17 chronic 23:14 Chronicle 11:4 cigarettes 45:1
46:6 citations 20:20
<b>cities</b> 23:20,22
citizen's 9:25 10:13
citizens 11:13
11:24 14:3
18:7 21:11,16 34:21 57:25
34:21 57:25
city 10:3,5 11:22 18:18
24:2,20,25
25:17,18 26:5 26:8 29:6
26:8 29:6
30:13 31:9,14 34:4,25 35:1
35:20 39:17
44:21,23 46:21 50:5 53:11,12
50:5 53:11,12
55:12,13,14,15 55:15,22 59:13
City's 56:6
<b>civil</b> 54:20
<b>civilian</b> 9:22 10:8
civilians 10:7
<b>claim</b> 13:15
clarification
41:16 56:24 57:15
class 43:20
57:24
classification

42:21	
<b>clean</b> 58:15,20	
clear 22:18	
42:23 55:23	
42:23 55:23 <b>clearly</b> 14:3	
clerk 44:25	
close 30:6 41:2	
51:5,6 53:17	
51.5,6 53.1/	
closely 33:20	
54:16	
closest 22:4	
clubs 60:11	
Coalition 17:5	
<b>Coffee</b> 16:15	
College 7:9	
<b>color</b> 53:5,16	
<b>come</b> 5:7,12,21	
16:21 21:11	
26:11 27:20	
34:1 39:19	
45:7 48:22	
49:23 53:16	
62:1	
comes 49:8	
coming 26:6 27:3	
29:3 36:5	
29:3 36:5 44:14 49:1	
59:23	
<b>command</b> 5:10	
22:15	
Commander 16:21	
16:24 17:1,3	
19:11 20:1	
50:23 61:10,16	
61:16	
commend 37:23	
43:15 49:2,4	
comment 13:2	
48:8,13 56:13	
56:19 57:16	
60:22	
comments 19:16	
21:5 31:22	
36:11 38:10	
21:5 31:22 36:11 38:10 39:1,6 54:4	
commission 9:22	
39:2 63:25	
commissioner 2:4	
2:5,6,7 4:5,7	
2:5,6,7 4:5,7 4:8,18,19,20	
4:21,21,23,23	
4:25,25 5:2,5	
==,== = =,=	

5:15,23 6:3,4 6:6,7,11,14,15 6:16,20 7:5,9 7:24 8:2,7,9 9:8,13,15 11:3 12:9 15:7,12 15:14,15,16,18 15:19,24 19:2 19:3,15,17,19 21:3,4,6,7,8 21:24 22:20,21 22:22,23,23 23:23,23,25 26:12,23,24,25 27:1,25 28:6 28:15,22,24 29:1,1,2,4,10 29:11,12,13,14 31:20,22 32:1 36:10,12,20,20 36:21,25 38:5 38:10,11,15,22 38:24,25 39:18 39:20,22 40:15 40:18,19 41:14 41:15,18 42:4 42:5,8,20,21 42:22 43:1,5,7 43:9,13,14,15 43:24,25 44:11 45:18,19 47:18 48:3,24 49:2,6 49:17 51:19 53:25 54:2,3 54:25 56:8,12 56:21,23,23 57:2,8,13,16 57:17 58:17 59:11,16,20 60:10,17,18,20 60:21 61:24 62:2,4,7  ${\tt commissioners}$ 1:1 2:1 4:6,16 6:12 8:11 9:3 9:16 13:6 14:16 16:4 17:2 26:16,20 26:21 31:23 32:8 36:10 40:8 43:11

49:23 51:17,22

51:24 54:4,8 commissions 39:7 commitment 43:18 committee 39:8 **common** 23:21 communication 39:24 communications 12:23 44:7 communities 52:17,20 community 5:17 9:20 11:10 16:16 20:24 21:19 24:8 26:8 39:3 40:7 44:4 53:23 58:21,24 59:1 compassion 54:19 complaint 19:20 20:3 28:2 complaints 9:25 18:15 20:9 44:22 59:22 computer 63:15 Compuware 17:23 concern 7:13 31:21 concerned 11:23 27:15 55:1 59:18 61:2 concerning 22:15 45:11 concerns 12:16 19:8,22 36:23 concludes 19:15 conditions 44:25 cones 21:14 22:3 conference 29:8 conflict 13:24 14:24 confused 27:4 confusion 21:10 Congress 14:17 connected 50:4 51:11 connection 45:23 consider 23:3 consideration 12:12 23:5 consistent 56:6 constructed

54:14 contact 17:7 45:5 57:6 continue 16:11 19:5 20:22 27:10,12 28:4 35:21 37:24 40:10 49:14 continued 36:16 continues 13:16 continuing 9:15 continuous 11:9 continuously 46:22 47:12 **control** 10:13 50:9 conversation 21:20 31:7 cooperate 56:4 cooperated 48:16 cooperative 17:16 18:3 Cops 16:15 **copy** 11:3 core 19:8 **Corp** 5:6 Corporal 40:22 41:7 correct 24:22 59:20 63:16 corrected 56:22 correction 57:10 Corridor 20:2 Council 44:21,23 Councilman 45:21 Councilwoman 19:21 counsel 63:18 **counter** 45:1,15 country 56:4 county 52:11,24 63:5,8,24 **couple** 5:25 6:25 16:9 30:6,6 course 8:24 52:6 **court** 8:16 18:23 **cover** 13:19 38:17 **CPA** 33:20 **crack** 53:9

16:2,5,25 18:25 19:13,18 21:18,25 23:7 30:16 31:21,25 37:21 38:14,21 39:24 43:23 46:7 47:20,24 48:1 49:22 51:23 52:14 53:20 55:11,16 55:20 56:20 58:9,18 59:14 59:17,21 60:13 60:19 61:5 creating 31:8 **crime** 16:5,6,7,8 46:18 56:3 criminal 59:22 criminality 59:19 crisis 11:21 53:4 criteria 40:2 Cromwell 9:5 **cross** 13:19 **cruel** 55:10 CSR-9305 63:22 culture 25:2 curator 33:10 **curb** 22:4 current 11:7 13:23 currently 44:8 customers 45:2 **cut** 21:22 D

D 2:5
D.C 7:17,19
14:21
dad 46:23,24
47:5,15
Daniel 41:6 42:7
42:24
Danielle 40:25
Darryl 2:5 4:19
daughter 37:17
51:10
daughters 37:15
Davis 2:7 5:2,3
41:21 42:6

54:25 56:13,21

56:23 57:1,4 day 8:17 10:21 16:12,17 17:19 18:8 34:24 47:14 60:14 deal 25:10,11 30:4 death 30:20 **debate** 52:7 debris 44:24 decency 15:3 decision 18:22 decisions 5:19 defenseless 13:18 14:25 definitely 49:18 61:6 **delay** 18:24 Delicia 41:5 **demand** 58:10,24 democracy 10:10 democratic 15:3 demonstrate 19:7 **Demps** 40:16 denigrated 15:4 department 7:16 9:24 10:1 11:6 11:12,19 17:14 26:20 34:5,7 37:16 44:15 45:4,6,23 47:6 47:9 52:9,12 58:22 deploying 20:25 deposition 63:9 **Depot** 34:18 **Deputy** 18:17 19:20,25,25 45:20,20 53:21 60:16 designated 13:14 22:5,8 designed 58:13 **desist** 51:13 detain 30:25 detective 40:21 41:2 46:19 61:15,19,21,22 detective's 61:22 detectives 41:12 46:16,20 50:24



**Craig** 3:9 7:21

9:10,12,14

61.10
61:18 <b>detention</b> 11:17
18:17,24 deteriorating
50:2
Detroit 1:1,4,6 4:1 5:6 9:23
10:3 11:15,17
10:3 11:15,17 13:6 14:10 17:6 18:16
27:21 28:5
32:2,6,13,15 32:16 33:5,23
44:2 45:4,5,23 51:15 52:12
51:15 52:12 56:15,17,17,18
57:5,6,14,19 58:1,7,7,21,22
59:13
Detroit's 23:20 Detroiter 54:10
Detroiters 52:16 develop 14:22
developed 13:10
Dewaelsche 2:2
4:5,7,8 5:5,23 6:4,7,11,16,20
6:4,7,11,16,20 7:5,9,24 8:2,7 8:9 9:8,13,15
15:7,15,19,24 19:2,15 21:4,7
19:2,15 21:4,7 22:21 23:23
22:21 23:23 26:12,24 28:6
28:15,22 29:1 29:11,13 31:22
32:1 36:10,20 38:10,24 39:18
40:18 41:15,18
42:4,8,20 43:9 43:14,24 44:11
47:18 48:3
49:17 51:19 53:25 54:3
56:8,12,23
57:2,8,13 60:17,20 61:24
62:4,7 <b>DFD</b> 35:6
dialogue 17:8
<pre>difference 21:1 different 21:14</pre>
46:16,17 49:1

49:3 direct 31:17 59:9 directing 14:1 direction 5:17
16:12 22:1 directive 46:7 directly 28:3 58:20 59:2 director 8:20
11:9 12:20 32:6 33:14 52:19 dirty 44:25 46:6
59:5,19 60:7 discusses 11:5 discussing 52:4 discussion 15:20 27:18 41:20,21
42:9 discussions 5:20 disobedient 54:20
dispensaries 52:3,5 53:7,10 Dist 2:4,5,6,7 district 4:19,22 5:1,3 50:9 52:3
<pre>districts 39:17 DMC 35:14 doing 30:22   31:12 36:14,17</pre>
44:12 46:3 48:25 49:3 50:12 51:16 dollar 34:11 dollars 10:4
35:14,23 Donald 14:17 donations 33:25 35:10 door 38:9
<b>downtown</b> 11:15 17:5 <b>DPD</b> 5:11 8:6
33:9 34:19 35:7 38:13 46:2
Dr 8:25 9:9 draw 11:1 drive 14:25 23:1

34:11 driver 47:8 drug 60:8 drugs 53:3 60:1 60:2 due 15:16 18:8 duly 63:11,14 dumbest 24:10 Duncan 40:20
E
E 2:4 3:9 40:20 40:21 41:6,8 early 34:13
59:24 east 21:10 24:16 eastside 23:15
Edition 11:5 education 22:18
effect 23:19 efforts 11:21 20:25 either 22:1
55:17 63:18 elected 6:21,22 6:23
Elizabeth 2:3 4:23 embrace 28:1
<b>EMS</b> 33:4 <b>enforcement</b> 13:7 20:6,10 23:15 37:12 55:12
<pre>engage 59:2 engaged 14:22 engineer 50:1 Engineering 45:5</pre>
enlarged 49:12 enlighten 27:1,5 entertaining 36:22 37:1
<pre>entire 42:1 entrance 13:15   17:22 equally 13:9</pre>
<pre>equipment 34:3   35:15 equity 52:20</pre>
Eric 51:21 54:5 54:9 escaping 48:20

especially 58:4 **essence** 21:22 essentially 39:17 **Eva** 2:2 4:8 evening 48:6 62:8 **event** 16:14 33:3 63:18 **events** 32:25 eventually 17:21 everlasting 5:14 everybody 24:3 evidence 47:12 **evolve** 58:19 exactly 46:3 **example** 49:16 excellent 26:22 exception 41:24 42:14,15 exceptional 33:10 Excuse 28:8 excused 4:10 executing 20:4 executive 2:10 12:19 13:25 14:4,6 32:6 **exists** 9:22 **expect** 26:20 32:20,21 experience 55:4 61:20 experienced 21:2 54:11 **experts** 27:2,17 **expires** 63:25 explain 17:9 explained 17:8 express 7:13 Extension 6:11 6:18 **eye** 10:7 53:14 53:18 **eyes** 52:25 F facilities 53:22

Facility 11:18 fact 14:6 27:17

failure 45:15

44:14

Faith 46:9 48:4 48:6,7 49:18 fall 27:13,14 28:3 42:15 **fallen** 7:14 **false** 50:22 familiar 40:24 47:24 families 13:8 18:23 48:9,12 **family** 13:4 14:13,22 35:7 40:23 46:21 61:8,11,14 **far** 20:24 35:13 55:13,15 **Farrell** 41:10 fashion 18:6 **father** 5:12,15 5:16,17,18 40:15 46:10,15 60:22 **favor** 6:8,17 15:21 42:9 47:10 62:5 February 46:16 **federal** 12:14 13:10 56:4 **feel** 24:4 25:14 46:25 feels 48:10 **feet** 50:2 **felony** 20:17 **female** 37:20 47:8 **FEO** 50:1 fewer 22:12 Field 34:24 35:2 **Fifth** 22:16 27:7 38:8,8 **fight** 53:13 fighting 52:6 financial 32:11 32:12 35:10 **fine** 25:8 59:15 **fire** 32:16 33:24 34:5,17 36:7 firefighters fireworks 16:13 **first** 6:1 7:20

10:18 16:12

23:21 30:17 35:19 36:21 37:8 38:18 40:3 44:9 63:11 fiscal 8:24 Fitzgerald 50:25 **five** 21:22 22:2 46:25 fleeing 13:14 **floor** 38:8,8,8 **flow** 22:9 **flowers** 57:23 **fluids** 18:14 folks 49:1 **follow-up** 19:19 **followed** 44:10 46:9 48:4 49:20 51:20 follows 49:8 **forced** 13:4 50:16,16,18 Ford 7:6,7 foregoing 63:13 **forget** 30:17 **formal** 32:19 **former** 33:9 **forth** 63:11 **Forty** 51:7 **forward** 16:22 33:2 39:3 40:5 42:24 43:20 49:14 **found** 49:12 54:13 foundation 12:19 12:20,21 32:3 32:7,13,14 34:6 35:14,18 36:23 founding 10:9 **four** 21:25 22:1 44:9 free 14:10 49:6 freedom 19:8 **front** 17:22 19:21 27:23

45:10 54:14

frustrated 31:2

frustration

31:13,14

31:3

**fueled** 13:24 **full** 32:20 63:16 function 33:6 **fund** 35:20,24 **funding** 33:25 34:6,14,15 52:10 further 7:19 **future** 28:22 G **Gabriel** 40:17 **Gap** 35:3 Gary 55:3 **GARZA** 2:2 gas 44:16,18,24 45:6,7,24 46:5 57:20,21,25 58:6,10,22 59:5,9,25 60:5 60:12 **general** 13:20 53:2,15 56:14 gentleman 50:10 gentrification 24:3 50:15 **George** 49:21 51:20,22,25 **Gerry** 40:13 getaway 47:8 getting 36:3 51:15 53:22 60:5 **Gift** 33:6 **give** 15:25 16:22 19:24 20:22 37:8 45:14 53:2,15 57:25 60:24

given 5:17,20

46:7 58:7

gives 13:13

**GM** 34:11

giving 44:15

16:12 21:15

glad 33:12 48:11

**go** 7:19 8:19,22

23:5 26:24

30:24 31:1

35:9 37:17

39:8 40:5 42:4

28:10 29:13

43:14 45:16 49:14 50:11 51:4,4,8 52:11 52:15,23 53:18 58:1,23 60:12 **God** 54:21 goes 25:8 32:20 42:24 44:23 47:7,14 48:21 48:24 52:24 going 4:8 7:21 15:17 16:11 21:12 22:12 24:16,20 25:18 26:1,2,3,6 28:4 29:21 30:5 32:2 36:15 40:6 41:3 45:11 46:8 50:17 51:2 52:4,13 52:22,22,23 53:2,5,6,14,16 53:16,18 55:22 58:10 59:9,17 **good** 4:5,6 5:2 9:2,3,13,14 16:2,4 17:1,2 18:14 19:17,18 28:16 32:5,7,8 35:11 39:1 44:12 48:6 49:5,22 51:22 51:24 54:1,2,6 54:8 62:8 **gotten** 26:15 government 4:13 10:11 12:14 13:7,10,13,16 14:1 grace 5:14 Graduated 7:5 granddad 47:9 grant 33:25 34:11 35:17,19 **grants** 33:14 36:3 great 37:24 39:4 green 58:4,12,22 59:3,4 Greg 8:10

Gregory 2:11



41:7 31:16 humanely 48:14indicated 11:16 27:16 39:23 **Grosse** 27:20,20 **Hello** 46:10 48:18 grounds 58:6 **help** 5:17 36:15 hundred-thousand individual 12:11 **group** 18:5 29:18 34:11 20:8 44:16 38:3 47:2,3,16 hurt 50:1 45:14 42:16 51:15 hurts 47:13 **grow** 52:16 **helped** 34:22,23 individuals **guess** 50:5 helpful 28:19 husband 49:24 42:18 55:24 33:23 51:1 **infancy** 58:13 **guided** 5:16 guy 24:10,11 **helps** 52:7 **inform** 58:3 I guys 30:3,8 **Henry** 7:6,7 information 7:18 46:17 49:24 hereinbefore **idea** 26:22 28:16 11:10,18 25:5 63:10 45:2 28:11 39:1,4 н **Hero's** 35:7 identified 57:14 39:15 47:2,23 identify 32:3 **ha** 39:7 **Hi** 7:4 61:16 52:1 54:1 half 33:15 Hicks 2:11 5:4 58:14 56:14 8:10,12 9:9 informational **Halo** 38:20 illegally 56:3 hamburgers 26:2 28:7,8,21 imagine 22:11 10:16 informed 17:17 hand 5:14 39:10 40:1 immediate 14:13 41:17,23 42:13 handcuff 18:9 14:19 inhumane 13:8 15:4 55:2 42:25 43:3,6 immediately 8:18 **handle** 19:5 **handled** 11:25 **High** 7:6 immigrating 13:9 initiate 34:22 initiated 35:24 **happen** 61:15 highest 14:14 immigration happened 51:9 highlight 11:21 13:11 14:23 **injured** 7:14,16 historic 37:11 55:25 injustices 11:25 happening 25:25 hitting 30:7 happens 56:3 **impact** 53:5,16 **input** 36:23 holiday 9:17 57:13 impacted 22:17 **insert** 11:3,5 happily 33:5 Holley 2:8 4:20 implement 14:19 **inside** 18:11 happy 25:19 36:6 4:20 23:24,25 14:23 44:25 54:15 instructed 13:16 26:13 27:25 implemented 36:7 38:1 **hard** 36:25 41:14 43:1 13:23 61:7 instrumental Harper 48:5 49:6 important 10:9 33:8 49:20,22 home 24:15 34:18 10:14,16 61:12 intelligently 50:18 51:3 hat 48:24 impoverished 29:5 havens 58:15 homicide 48:2 53:10 **intend** 54:15 60:24 61:8,21 impressed 29:18 interested 63:18 Headquarters 1:4 homies 50:8 interim 8:20 9:18 44:3 29:24 30:1 **health** 49:13 honest 25:4,4 improve 10:5 intern 7:3 inappropriate 50:2 52:8 honored 38:2 intersection 53:22 hook 37:4 57:6 44:19 hear 28:3 36:4 hope 14:3 35:21 Intervention inappropriately hopefully 33:23 51:17 57:4 35:4 heard 37:6 52:19 hoping 23:19 incident 30:21 intoxicants horrible 50:6 include 14:6 20:21 hearing 15:21 Hospital 35:18 34:2 39:14 introduce 4:16 31:23 39:8,20 42:9 45:9,10 **Host** 8:6 Included 11:2 6:23 7:1,20,21 45:12 52:2 **hot** 18:8 includes 16:6 8:4,10,25 53:8 hour 50:13 including 21:25 12:10 33:13 **heart** 27:3 49:13 house 34:17 introduced 8:6 independent 49:24 52:25 introduction heavily 23:10 32:17,17 45:10

indicate 6:17

8:13 15:21

42:9

8:13

invested 50:18

investigate 9:24

53:19

**Hudson** 34:6

**human** 15:3

heighten 11:10

heightened 20:5

helicopter 30:23

30:25 investigated 20:12,15,19 investigations 20:18 Investigator 9:5 9:5,6,6,7,7 invited 5:6 invocation 5:6 involved 13:8 17:12 34:12 56:2 60:1 involvement 37:2 37:7 **Isle** 25:2 **issue** 18:22 27:14,21,24 28:4 30:17 31:19 **issued** 11:12 20:13,20 46:1 **issues** 52:8 53:6 item 39:11,21 items 5:25 10:16 10:16

J **J**41:10 **James** 3:9 40:16 Jamiesha 7:2 **Jeff** 33:9 53:2 53:15 Jefferson 20:2 21:11,21 22:6 22:17 23:10,13 23:16,17 24:9 25:1 27:23,24 **Jesus** 5:22 **Jewelry** 33:13 **Jim** 2:8 4:20 **Joanne** 40:21 **job** 29:17,23 37:12,24 50:1 51:16 60:15 Johnson 8:24 40:13 joined 9:10 37:15,18,20 52:18 **joining** 4:12 7:2 9:11

**Jones** 9:7 41:8

Joseph 44:5
Jr 40:13 44:21
Julie 41:1
July 10:18,19,21
10:22 15:10,13
15:16 34:25
44:4
jump 51:9
June 1:3 4:2 6:2
6:12 11:4,12
12:2 44:2
Justice 34:7

K **K** 40:22,25 **K-9** 35:4 **Kaffer** 14:11 **keep** 52:25 53:14 53:17 57:19 58:7 keynote 37:4 **kid** 30:14 **Kidd** 41:5 **Kimberly** 40:16 kind 24:23 31:18 57:21,23 59:2 knew 18:3 40:15 **know** 16:9 21:12 21:13,14,19 22:16,18 23:1 23:15 24:3,8 24:10,13,15,16 24:18,21 25:2 25:9,10,17,18 25:20,20 26:1 26:5,7,8,17 27:13 29:5,9 30:14 31:14 32:13 33:5 36:15 37:18 46:18,19 47:7 47:8,10 48:10 48:10,15,21 49:10 51:6 52:8 53:3,20 53:21 55:10,13 55:14,15,18,19 56:19 57:12 58:13 59:18,23 59:25 60:2,3,6 60:11 61:1,12 knowledge 25:12

54:19 knows 24:4 Krupinski 41:1 Kukula 12:19 32:5,6,9,24 36:18 38:1,6 38:25

36:18 38:1,6 L **L** 41:1,6 **ladies** 37:10,11 38:18 **lady** 50:3 52:9 56:14 60:22 Lamar 8:20 **LaMoe** 33:9 lane 21:22 22:1 22:2,4,5 23:4 lanes 21:10,13 21:17 22:2,12 22:24 23:1,2 23:12,13 26:14 26:18 27:8,9 27:19,22,23 29:6,9 30:2 Lansing 17:4 **Las** 36:2 **Lastly** 55:9 launching 30:23 **law** 13:7 37:11 52:9 55:12 Lawrence 40:19 **laws** 13:11,21 **layout** 29:24 **lead** 39:21 leading 27:20 **lean** 5:13 **leave** 18:1 50:18 leaving 13:18 **lecture** 52:18,18 **led** 27:18 **Lee** 48:5 49:20 49:22 50:24 **left** 4:17 8:19 8:21 49:10 51:1 55:8 **left-turn** 22:1,2 **letting** 49:16 **LGBT** 35:2 **LGBTQ** 34:24

**liaison** 39:17

library 35:5

license 45:13,16 45:17 Licensing 45:6 **lied** 46:22,22 lies 47:12 Lieutenant 12:6 40:6 43:21 Lieutenants 39:25 41:12 **life** 10:5 lifelong 54:10 **lifting** 37:13 **light** 58:4,12,22 59:4,5 lights 30:8,10 **liked** 55:6 limit 31:15 **limited** 10:20 line 22:4 liquor 46:5 **Lisa** 4:9 list 39:15 **listed** 42:18 listing 7:16 **little** 35:5 37:5 48:9 51:5 60:25 61:3 live 23:14 31:14 50:11 53:12 **lived** 37:22 Livernois 16:19 44:20 local 16:19 **locally** 10:15 **located** 12:24 44:6 location 57:20 59:19,23 60:1 locations 58:14 58:19 loitering 58:16 long 19:23 longer 55:3 61:20 **look** 17:20 25:20 39:3 43:20 44:24 60:5 **looked** 48:11 54:16 looking 33:2 **loose** 31:7 45:1 46:6



loosies 46:1 59:6 60:7 **loss** 41:3 **lost** 46:10,15,23 **lot** 11:17 23:2 23:16,20,22 25:19 28:9 29:24 34:3 53:4 57:14 **lots** 16:16 21:20 23:11 loud 20:20 **love** 19:6 38:15 41:4 59:15 **lucky** 36:3 lukewarm 55:17

### М

**M-1** 18:5 **ma'am** 62:2 Macomb 63:5,24 Madam 5:4 8:12 15:12 16:2 19:3 21:3 24:24 25:21 26:11,23 28:6 28:8 29:12 36:21 38:11 39:10,22 41:11 41:17,23 42:13 43:13 44:8 56:10 60:21 **Mahone** 20:1 majority 58:20 making 8:13 33:8 mama 48:9 man 30:21 management 60:3 manager 2:10 45:16 mannequins 35:15 manner 12:1 Mapp 8:16 63:7 63:22 **Maria** 33:22 marijuana 52:2,7 52:16 53:7 markers 27:10 marketing 33:14 markings 23:2 Martius 17:15,23 18:11 54:14

marvelous 36:16 Mary 19:21 **masters** 49:25 matters 19:6 mayor 10:1 21:19 22:18 27:6,10 27:13 28:3 55:14 mayor's 51:14 McAllister 8:25 44:21 McCalister 9:2,4 9:4,9 45:22 mean 23:20,21 47:1,3,7,11 54:21 59:11,12 media 8:15,22 11:8 25:6 medical 52:7 53:6 **medium** 5:21 meet 9:16,18,20 meeting 1:2 4:94:13,14 8:15 10:18,19,21,22 10:25 12:22 15:10,15,16 20:24 27:3,4 28:23 44:1,4 51:14 54:24 56:15 61:18 meetings 7:13 21:19,20 22:19 27:6 meets 60:6 **member** 31:7 32:19 36:24 41:24,25 44:21 44:23 46:21 54:12 61:11,14 members 11:2 14:17 28:13,18 32:18 42:14 43:16 58:24 59:1 61:8 **memory** 48:20 Memphis 46:14 60:23 61:1 men 16:18

**mental** 53:22

mentioned 52:10

52:15 55:11

mentoring 16:17 menu 25:22,22,25 mercy 5:15 message 51:1 met 19:21 37:14 40:2 45:21,22 61:14 Michelle 49:21 51:20 Michigan 1:6 4:1 11:4 14:10 35:18 39:15 63:3,24 **middle** 30:9 Mile 44:19,20 50:14 miles 50:12 military 4:18 mindful 13:20 mini 30:3,14 31:10 minor 18:18 minute 47:449:10 minutes 6:12 27:2 missed 52:18 mission 32:16 mistreated 46:22 mix 57:11 **Mobley** 5:7,9 **modify** 10:2 mom 46:17 momentarily 8:1 Monday 11:12 12:2 16:13 money 50:5,19 51:3 52:5,10 52:15,23 monitor 9:25 28:2 month 9:19,21 33:21 months 14:8 Monti 40:23 morale 38:3 morning 59:24 motion 6:2,4,10 6:13,19 10:24 12:10 15:9,11 15:20,22,23 41:16 42:18

43:9,12 62:6 motorcycles 20:3 30:4 motorists 22:25 Motorola 34:14 **Motown** 35:3 move 15:12 41:11 50:25 51:2 moved 6:3,7,14 6:16 41:13,19 62:2,4 moving 22:11 murder 59:24 **murders** 61:13 Murray 41:1 museum 33:6,9 music 20:3

N

# **name** 5:22 12:24 32:5,15 40:23 44:12 46:12 48:6 50:4 54:9 **named** 43:16 names 12:11 Nancy 14:11 narrower 27:24 27:24 nation's 15:3 **national** 13:7,13 nationally 10:14 18:21 42:16

nations 14:22 navigating 24:11 nearly 14:4 neat 58:2 necessary 18:10 need 5:25 23:4 24:7,24 25:3 25:19,25 26:8 26:22 27:12 29:23 38:12 41:16 50:9 55:12,14,18,18 57:22 needs 13:1 51:12 neighborhood 34:23 37:17 41:2,4 44:22 53:17 58:23 neighborhoods

53:9

16:12

neuropathy 50:3 **never** 48:10 61:14 **new** 12:9 28:18 39:20 61:21 **newly** 43:16 nice 24:18,23,24 58:2 Nichols 9:6 **night** 13:19 30:11 noise 19:20 20:20 non-criminal 9:25 non-employees 34:9 nonviolent 54:20 normal 22:9 **Notary** 63:1,8,23 notating 22:7 notation 43:3,5 60:25 notations 22:6 **note** 41:25 42:3 60:25 61:3 **notes** 63:17 **notice** 18:23 noticed 22:24 notification 11:13,15 17:4 notifications 17:6 November 33:1 **number** 22:19 58:11

Oaks 7:2,4,8
objection 42:3
43:1
objective 10:3
obstruct 22:9
obtained 13:1
obviously 18:7
occur 61:9
occurring 61:13
occurs 61:9
OCI 9:1
off-road 31:9
offenses 18:18

**office** 3:8 33:19

0

officer 33:10 34:23 40:22,25 41:1,3,4,5,5,6 41:7,8,9,9 42:7,23 45:10 45:12 55:4,12 56:16 **officers** 7:14,16 12:5,6,11 13:7 19:9 22:15 31:2 33:4 34:5 34:22 35:25 37:20 39:2 45:25 46:2 50:21 51:16 56:18,25 57:1 57:7 officials 6:21 6:22,23 **oh** 20:17 38:21 43:14 46:13 48:20 **okay** 7:11,24 8:2 17:20 19:16 26:1 31:20,25 40:16,25 41:19 41:21 42:6,8 42:11 43:7,9 47:18 48:1 50:16 51:7 53:24 57:2 59:16 60:10 **old** 10:8 14:8 39:19 48:21 ones 57:2 58:4 open 5:11 20:21 38:9 operate 34:16 Operation 20:2 operations 10:1 30:23 opioid 53:4 opportunities 15:1 opportunity 5:13 27:11 32:10 **Opposed** 6:9,18 15:22 42:10 optimistic 16:11 16:18 option 31:1

order 14:1,4,6 42:16 ordinance 20:20 ordinances 18:19 organization 36:13 organizers 17:8 ought 24:5 25:5 25:11,15 26:9 26:10 **outraged** 13:6,10 outreach 8:22 11:9 34:2,21 outside 44:24outstanding 19:4 29:17 37:5 38:13 **overall** 16:5,8 oversight 9:23 10:8 11:6 overwhelmed 50:24 owner 45:16 59:14 **owners** 58:21 59:3,4

Ρ **p.m** 4:3 9:19 44:2 62:9 pack 30:14 **packet** 11:2,2 **PAGE** 1:8 **paint** 27:9 parents 12:15 13:22 14:2,6,9 14:19,20 37:14 Park 18:11 parking 11:17 20:13,22 **Parks** 44:6 Parkside 49:25 50:12 part 23:8 24:6 25:15 26:9 27:18 30:7 32:16 36:14 58:5 part-time 33:18 particular 39:11 45:24 particularly

partnering 35:1 partnership 35:21 **party** 63:18 **passed** 48:10 53:1 passionate 55:1 Patti 12:19 32:4 32:5 **Paula** 37:9 Paulene 9:4 pavilion 18:11 pay 51:18 payroll 34:8 peacefully 19:7 **people** 4:12 13:16,18 14:25 19:7 22:8 23:3 23:20 24:12,15 26:7 27:8,15 29:3 50:7,12 51:6 52:7 53:5 53:16 55:6,8 56:16,19 57:5 **People's** 11:20 17:5 54:12 percent 16:6,7,8 perform 55:25 periods 9:18 **person** 7:1 31:5 42:2 59:25 60:2 personnel 8:20 persons 17:15,18 17:21 18:6 perspective 10:6 13:17 **Peter** 44:9,12 **phone** 51:2 physical 35:25 pick 18:23 **picked** 22:8 picture 38:16 **piece** 34:9 **place** 18:2 25:1 25:3 59:15 63:10 **placed** 18:12 places 46:5 **plan** 14:7,19 46:4



oral 12:22 44:7

planning 23:8 24 25:16,1	4:	6			5		
plans 33 Plant 33	: 2 : 2	1 2	6	:	2	3	
12:23 3 39:21 4 46:12 5 58:7	45 51	:	1	4 0	,	1	0
pleased a plenty 46 plus 14:7 37:18,1	5:	2	0		:	1	7
PM 1: 3 podium 5 point 10 11:18 3 38:12 6	:7 :2	4:	1	5			
Pointe 2 pointed poised 12 police 1	7: 45 2:	2 : 8	0 9	,	2	1	
5:6 8:1 9:18,22 10:2,2	11 2, 1	2	9 3 :	:	1	6	
12:41:16:26:20:31:2:33:6,23:33:6,23:36:7:33:39:1,7:40:22,24:23:41:2:41:2:41:2:41:2:41:2:41:2:41:2	21 29 2: 3	: 1 3	9 3 4	, ;	1 1 2	202	
34:23 3 36:7 3 39:1,7 40:22,3	35 7: ,1 25	: 1 6	1 5 4	6	:	1	
41:8,8 42:23 45:4,23	, 9 44 3	:	4 1 7	, 2 5 :	9	6	,
50:21,2 51:16 ! 54:13,2 56:16,2	52 18 17	:	1 5 1	2 5 8	:	4	
57:1,6 58:21 POLICE'S policies	3 5 5	:	8	9	8		
policing 54:11 policy 10 13:23 30:18	0:	2		1	3	:	4

politically
24:22 50:4
51:11
Ponder 41:6 Poor 11:20 17:4
54:12
<b>popular</b> 37:12
porch 51:8
<b>position</b> 55:21 56:6
possible 43:21
<b>power</b> 53:3,15
powers 10:11
practice 12:14 13:21 14:1
practices 14:18
14:23 15:4
prayer 5:11
<pre>praying 49:13,18 precept 49:15</pre>
Precinct 16:16
22:16,16 27:7
37:19,20 44:5
50:22
precincts 22:14 34:19 35:4,6
49:4
present 9:1
presentation 12:18 28:9,11
28:17,18,19
32:2
presented 43:10
<pre>president 13:25   14:17 55:10</pre>
press 14:10 36:4
pretend 25:13
primary 20:8
<pre>principle 10:8 principles 10:9</pre>
10:14 15:3
print 12:23
<pre>priorities 14:15</pre>
prisoner 18:13
<pre>private 17:25 58:11</pre>
<b>pro</b> 37:20
<pre>probably 32:13</pre>
45:1,2
<pre>problem 23:14 30:22</pre>
30.22

proceed 41:11
<pre>proceeding 62:9</pre>
<b>process</b> 39:12
40:1
professional
12:1 54:18
professionally
19:6
<b>profile</b> 11:10
program 34:8,17
35:4,7,15
57:21 58:18
programs 34:21
35:2
<pre>prohibits 30:18</pre>
<pre>promoted 12:5</pre>
<pre>promotion 39:25</pre>
40:6 41:16 promotions 39:13 42:17 43:10,18
promotions 39:13
42:17 43:10,18
<b>proper</b> 45:13
59:10
propers 37:9
property 16:7,8
18:1 58:11
59:10
proposed 13:23
protect 17:10
protest 11:24
17:5,6,9,10,11
17:13 19:8
protesting 11:14
54:20
<pre>proud 35:11,20</pre>
36:14 38:1
provide 7:17
9:22 10:4 11:9
12:15
12:15 <b>provided</b> 10:23
12:15 <b>provided</b> 10:23 18:12 47:1
provided 10:23 18:12 47:1
provided 10:23 18:12 47:1 providing 8:15
provided 10:23 18:12 47:1 providing 8:15 11:6
<pre>provided 10:23   18:12 47:1 providing 8:15   11:6 public 1:4 12:18</pre>
<pre>provided 10:23   18:12 47:1 providing 8:15   11:6 public 1:4 12:18   13:2,20 14:15</pre>
<pre>provided 10:23   18:12 47:1 providing 8:15   11:6 public 1:4 12:18   13:2,20 14:15   28:13 31:5</pre>
<pre>provided 10:23    18:12 47:1 providing 8:15    11:6 public 1:4 12:18    13:2,20 14:15    28:13 31:5    32:3,6,15 44:2</pre>
<pre>provided 10:23   18:12 47:1 providing 8:15   11:6 public 1:4 12:18   13:2,20 14:15   28:13 31:5   32:3,6,15 44:2   63:8,23</pre>
<pre>provided 10:23   18:12 47:1 providing 8:15   11:6 public 1:4 12:18   13:2,20 14:15   28:13 31:5   32:3,6,15 44:2   63:8,23 published 11:4</pre>
provided 10:23 18:12 47:1 providing 8:15 11:6 public 1:4 12:18 13:2,20 14:15 28:13 31:5 32:3,6,15 44:2 63:8,23 published 11:4 pull 55:8
provided 10:23 18:12 47:1 providing 8:15 11:6 public 1:4 12:18 13:2,20 14:15 28:13 31:5 32:3,6,15 44:2 63:8,23 published 11:4 pull 55:8 pulled 55:2
provided 10:23 18:12 47:1 providing 8:15 11:6 public 1:4 12:18 13:2,20 14:15 28:13 31:5 32:3,6,15 44:2 63:8,23 published 11:4 pull 55:8

pursue 31:4
pursuing 30:18
pursuit 30:18
 31:1
push 55:7
pushed 55:2
put 23:2,5 27:9
 27:22 48:8
 52:17 57:20
 58:10 59:9
puts 31:5

# Q quality 10:5 question 55:16 questions 19:1,2 19:14,16 21:5 21:8 26:19 31:23 36:8,11 39:6,12 54:3 63:13 quick 28:13 Quinn 8:14 quorum 5:4 quote 50:7,7

 $\mathbf{R}$ 

## **R** 41:9 **race** 36:1 racism 52:20 53:13 **Rail** 18:5 **Randolph** 11:15 17:14 rank 39:25 40:6 40:8,21 41:12 41:13 ranks 12:5,6 37:21 ravished 53:9 **reach** 34:20 read 12:11 13:3 20:7 ready 28:13 51:4 51:4,9 60:5 realities 13:12 reality 13:15 realized 54:16 **really** 21:17 23:1 24:19,24 29:24 30:1 37:18 38:1,15

procedure 44:17

57:22 61:2 rear 18:10 reason 52:21,21 reasonable 13:11 14:23 recall 37:19 receive 9:24 33:25 34:6 received 17:4 34:10,14 35:17 35:23 39:23 receives 7:15 receiving 20:9 43:21 recognize 14:24 37:11 38:12 recognized 37:10 recommendation 12:10 40:5,5 recommendations 12:7,8 recommended 12:5 record 8:14 12:12 20:1 32:4 42:1,3,11 42:12,17 43:4 45:21 46:5 54:9 55:21 61:17 recorded 63:14 recover 30:25 recruiting 49:1 red 30:8 **reduced** 63:15 reference 39:24 referring 61:19 **reflect** 12:16 refreshing 48:17 regarding 18:18 regards 19:20 Reginald 41:2 registering 18:19 **regress** 49:15 REGULAR 1:2 reinforce 14:25 reissue 28:10 **related** 11:20 63:17 relates 13:4 16:20

**relay** 36:1

releases 36:4 relief 21:2 remember 57:18 remind 15:2 reminder 28:13 renewal 45:8 Repairs 34:18 **repeat** 37:7 report 7:12,15 12:4,21 13:14 15:25 16:20 19:16 28:17 31:24 32:12 38:12 39:3,9 39:11,23 40:7 reporter 8:17 63:8 reports 12:1 39:8 50:23 represent 22:3 representatives 6:22 17:17 REPRESENTING 3:8 reprimanded 51:12 request 15:9 28:20 42:1 49:11 requested 57:19 require 10:17 13:21 required 17:22 resident 44:13 residents 21:1 26:17 respectful 11:25 respective 17:16 respond 26:19,21 29:10 responded 19:9 27:6 45:24 restored 49:14 result 10:20 resume 40:4retired 50:1 **return** 14:7,19

reunification

reunite 14:7,20

Reverend 26:13

reviewed 12:7

reviews 40:3

14:13

revisit 27:14 **revoke** 45:12 revoked 45:17 Rhoades 44:10,12 44:13 46:3 Richard 41:10 **ride** 30:13 31:10 ridiculous 51:3 51:13 **riding** 24:12 30:3,9 31:6 right 4:18 8:18 8:21 17:10 24:1 25:17 43:6 55:8 57:8 58:17 61:17 **rights** 10:12 **risk** 31:5 river 19:21 27:23 road 44:19 50:7 Robert 2:10 8:18 13:1 41:8 **role** 11:5 **Ronald** 41:5 Rondalyn 44:10 46:13 room 8:21 12:25 **Rosa** 44:6 Rosedale 7:6 **route** 23:6 routes 34:15 routine 61:10 **Rowe** 41:8 Roy 44:21 rules 17:9 **run** 33:5 running 30:8 50:6 runs 48:2

\$ 13:9

Sacred 27:3

safe 16:14,14

31:8 34:15

58:14

safely 30:24

safety 1:4 12:19

32:3,6,15

36:23 44:3

45:5 59:18

**Salahji** 16:21,24 17:1,3 19:11 **sales** 44:25 sanctuary 55:14 55:15 **Santa** 34:16 **Sarah** 40:22 satisfied 20:10 **saw** 29:19 46:17 53:8 54:23 Sawmiller 41:7 **saying** 6:8,17 15:21 22:24 23:2 26:4,10 42:10,23 59:12 62:5 scenario 29:25 Schaeffer 22:24 22:25 23:4 scheduled 10:18 **school** 7:6 34:15 34:16 51:6 **schools** 52:20 scrutiny 60:6 **second** 6:5,6 9:20 41:14 47:4 **seconded** 6:8,17 15:20 41:19 62:5 Secondly 58:12 **Secret** 34:16 secretary 2:11 8:10 39:9 60:25 61:3 security 56:17 57:5 **see** 19:17,18 21:1 22:6 23:11 27:22 30:11 31:1 38:20 48:18,23 49:5,9 51:14 **seeing** 6:25 13:1 seek 14:25 seekers 13:17 **seen** 30:6 self-directed 13:22 selling 45:1 46:6 59:6 60:1 60:2,7,8



<pre>Seminar 34:25 Senate 53:18 senior 9:6,7 11:13,24 18:7 seniors 11:16 48:13,19 50:10 sent 39:13,15 45:25 separate 12:14 14:18</pre>
separated 14:5
<b>separating</b> 13:8 13:21 14:2
Separation 10:11
separations 13:4 sergeant 8:14
12:7 40:8,9,9 40:13,16,16,19
40:13,16,16,19 40:20 43:22
Sergeants 39:25 40:21 41:11,13
40:21 41:11,13
series 13:11 seriously 61:7
Services 8:15
Sessions 53:2,15 set 37:6 63:11
seven 34:20
seventh 22:16
37:19 38:7,8 <b>sewage</b> 56:17
57:5
Shacara 63:7,22
shaded 18:11 Shank 41:3
<b>share</b> 40:7 61:2 61:4
sharing 51:25
Sharon 48:4 Sheffield 19:22
sheriff 47:6
<b>Sheriff's</b> 52:11 <b>Shirley</b> 2:6 4:25
shocked 12:13
<b>shoes</b> 47:3
<pre>shooting 30:20 Shop 33:6</pre>
Shorthand 63:7
Shortridge 41:9
<b>show</b> 35:2 45:9 45:10,12 50:20
52:16
shutoffs 55:1

	0.1
<b>side</b> 8:19	
sign 58:1 signals 3	1 59:15
signais 3 signed 13	
39:16	• 45
зэ.то <b>signify</b> б	2 • 5
signily o signs 57:	
58:8 59	
simply 36	:13
41:24 4	
Sims 50:2	
<b>sir</b> 16:24	
<b>Sista</b> 53:	1
<b>sit</b> 24:2	_
sitting 8	:20
<b>six</b> 12:5,	
Skillman	34:6
slightly	60:15
Sloan 9:7	
slowed 16	:10
23:13	
slower 22	
slowly 23	
<b>small</b> 33:	
smaller 2	
smartest	
$\mathtt{Smith}41$ :	
so-called	
Solution	
somebody	24:5,/
24:25 2	2.10
26:22 4 47:2,15	0 · ∠ ⊃ E 1 · 1
somewhat	42.22
soon 43:2	
sorry 20:	
56:24	_ 0
<b>sort</b> 24:7	37:10
sounds 40	:23
south 26:	6
speak 14:	4 28:4
49:7,16	52:19
61:11	
<b>speaker</b> 3	
40:14 4	
54:5 56	
speaker':	<b>s</b> 12:24
speakers	
special 1	
20:5,22	

S	per	nd	2	3	:	1	6					
	- per								6	:	2	4
S	pol	ce	1	8	:	1	7					
	46								2	,	2	4
S	poi	ns	01	r	3	4	:	2	3			
S	<b>s</b> 6	3:	4									
	tal											
s	tai	Ε£	5	:	1	1		7	:	2	2	
	8:	4,	1	1		9	:	1				
	27	:9		2	9	:	1	7				
	30	:1		3	1	:	8					
	33	:1	8		3	8	:	3	,	7		
	40					_	_		_			
	ta]								6			
S	tar								_			
	40				5	5	:	1	3			
	56					_	_		_	_		
s	tar			ng	3	Τ	9	:	2	3		
	39				• -		_	^	1		1	^
	tar								4	•	Τ	9
S	tar				4	•	Τ	/				
_	55	• ⊥ ••	4		1	7		ے		o		
8	<b>ta</b> ı 8:	- C	1	٠		/		0	•	•	2	1
	58	. Ľ	_	O	•	S		S	/	•	4	_
	ta:			4	1	7		1	2			
5	20											
	58				_	•	_	_				
g	tat				:	1	2		2	9	:	7
_	39											•
	51	: 2	5		6	3	:	3	-	9		
s	tat								′	_		
s	tat	e	me	- 21	'n	t	1	2	:	1	6	
	13	: 3		1	7	:	1	9				
s	tat											
	44	:1	6	,	1	8	,	2				
	45	:7	,	2	4		5	8	:	1	0	
	58	:2	3		5	9	:	2	5			
	60											
s	tat											
	46	: 5		5	7	:	2	0	,	2	1	
	57	: 2	5		5	8	:	6				
	59	: 5	,	9								
	tat						_	_				
	tat						2	5				
	tay											
	tea											
s	ter				3]	Į	n:	L	2			
_	63					_,	L -		_			1 -
S	<b>te</b> 1				1]	اد	1.	Τ(	Jě	1.	۲.	τ3
_	७३ teg				_							
8	cer	4 ر	1	٠	Э							

**stepping** 55:5,5 **Steven** 41:3 **stop** 14:1 30:24 31:17 38:9 50:8 stopping 55:24 **stops** 20:19 22:7 23:17 stores 46:5 straight 50:14 strategy 46:4 **street** 1:5 11:15 22:7 24:14 30:4,9 44:3 53:11 strongly 14:21 structure 52:19 53:13 student 7:6 **stuff** 24:20,23 25:18 subject 28:9 subjects 17:12 submitted 18:4 **suburbs** 58:1 **success** 36:17 43:17 successful 36:2 **suggest** 10:22 12:1 Suicide 35:3 **summary** 28:16 **summer** 16:13 **Summit** 34:24 35:2 Supervising 9:5 support 6:15 7:14 10:23 14:13 15:18 32:16 33:3 34:1 36:7 38:2 38:6 58:25 60:11,14 supported 55:21 **sure** 12:23 18:13 22:13,17 24:1 25:7 28:21,21 29:22 33:8 43:8 55:5,16 61:6 suspend 45:13 **sworn** 63:11

speeders 23:17

speeding 23:18

т
T
<b>table</b> 12:25
25:21,22,24 <b>take</b> 5:25 18:8
22:12 28:2 30:20 31:9,18
30:20 31:9,18 57:25 58:25
59:6 60:5,8
61:7
taken 20:11 33:7
48:19 63:10,17
talk 22:15 24:2
30:2 57:17 59:7 61:8
talked 17:20,25
26:17 31:8
46:21 48:14
talking 26:13
taping 8:14
Target 34:17
taught 49:15
tax 10:4 33:21 taxes 51:18
teacher 49:25
teaching 16:17
team 35:19 36:6 television 25:6
television 25:6
tell 20:7 23:10
41:24 49:23 58:9
telling 50:13
57:22
Temporarily 7:23
Tennessee 46:14
60:23 61:1
<b>Tenth</b> 44:5 <b>Tereasa</b> 40:20
Teresa 11:8
terms 37:1 40:4
60:7
terror 13:14
test 15:5
testify 63:12
thank 4:12,14
5:5,8,9,12,15 5:19,21,23
6:20 7:9,10 8:12 9:8,9,10 9:12 11:8 15:7 15:7,22 19:9 19:11,11 21:3
8:12 9:8,9,10
9:12 11:8 15:7
15:7,22 19:9
19:11,11 21:3 22:20,22 28:6
44.40,44 40.0

28:23 29:11 31:23,25 32:9 32:24 34:12 36:18,22 37:24 38:14,22,24 39:5,10,18 40:25 42:20 43:7,11,22,23 43:24,25 45:17 45:19 47:17 48:3 49:16,17 49:19 51:15,18 51:19 53:25 54:21 55:19 56:7,8,8,20 57:8,10,15 60:10,17,18,19 61:24 62:7
61:24 62:7
thankful 48:22 Thanks 29:10
53:24
Thanksgiving
9:17 <b>thing</b> 28:25
46:17 49:11
61:9
things 5:22,22 16:10 21:15
25:24 27:25
29:19,20 30:22
31:12 34:18.21
35:9 48:15,21
35:9 48:15,21 48:22,25 49:4 50:11 61:7 think 8:8 19:21
think 8:8 19:21
23:12 24:12,17 24:24 25:3,5
24:24 25:3,5 25:11,19,23
26:11,19,23
26:22 28:15
32:11 33:7,15 36:16 37:10
36:16 37:10
47:4,5,14 53:5 53:23 56:16
57:24 58:19
60:14,16
Third 1:5 44:3
Thomas 40:22 thorough 40:1
thought 44:16

33:16								
thresho	1.		1	^		1	ے	
thresho.	т.	1	4	_	•	Τ	О	
Thrive 3								
Thursday	Y	1	:	3		4	:	2
9:17,2	n		1	n	:	1	9	
44:1,4			_	٠	•	_	_	
Thursday	Y	S	9	:	1	9		
ticket 4	6	:	1					
tickete					1	۲		
						O		
tickets	4	4	:	Τ	5			
45:14								
<b>tie</b> 16:1	R		1	R				
time 4:1	_	′	_	•	2			
						_		
15:5,9		1	7	:	1	7		
17:18	1	8	:	1	6			
20:10	2	2	:	1	2			
20:10 30:20 37:21 61:3,1 timely 4	2	_		_	^			
30:20	3	5	•	Τ	U			
37:21	3	8	:	9				
61:3.1	3		6	3	:	1	0	
+imolar 4	2		1	٥		_	Ĭ	
CIMETA	ی	•	_	O				
times 13	:	Τ	7					
23:16	4	4	:	1	3			
46:20								
timing 1	$\sim$		1	0				
Timothy	4	1	:	8				
today 4:	9		5	:	1	2		
5:18 7	:	2		4	4	:	1	ρ
48:23	_	1		7	_	·	_	_
	J	Τ	•	4				
61:15								
today's	8	:	1	4				
13:12								
				_				
<b>Todd</b> 60:					_		_	
<b>told</b> 26:						:	7	
48:14	5	0	:	2	5			
53:8,2								
55.072	_							
tone 37:								
touch 61	:	1	1					
touched	5	6	:	1	4	,	1	5
57:4						•		
		1	1					
tough 24	•	1	Τ.		_	_		
towed 20		1	4	,	1	9		
town 35:	5							
traffic		Λ		1	2		1	_
00.10	_	7	•	_	2	′	1	2
20:19,	4	Τ		4	4	:	Τ	U
22:11	2	3	:	1	3	,	1	5
23:17	2	4	:	3				
tragic 3	_		<b>つ</b>	0				
				U				
Train 35								
Trainer	3	5	:	1	5			
training						6		
34:2,1							ᆮ	
transcr	Ĺ1	pt	t	6	3	:	1	6

transcription 63:15
transferred
14:12
transition 25:8
transparency
10:12 25:12
transparent 25:3
35:12
transported
11:17
travel 22:4,6
traveled 23:11
60:23 61:1
treated 48:14,16
48:17
treatment 11:23
tremendous 38:6
tried 34:20
Troopers 39:16
true 63:16 Trump 13:25
Trump 13:25
14:17
trusting 5:14
truth 63:12,12
try 17:7 24:22
25:5,7,12 26:7 31:3 34:3
50:16,18
50:10,18
trying 18:9 24:15
turn 13:17 21:13
22:8 30:10
Twelfth 16:16
37:19 50:22
Twenty-three
16:24
twin 46:23
two 21:24 22:1
26:14 27:23
26:14 27:23 32:25 33:15
37:14 38:18
51:8 52:1
type 55:25
C1 FC 33 - 23

# U 13:9 U.S 12:15 13:5 Uh-huh 40:18 Ultimately 15:5 uncle 46:15,23 47:15 60:23

**three** 9:18 26:15

unclear 11:19 undercover 45:25 understand 14:3 21:16 24:17,19 25:23 26:18 52:12,14 understanding 27:13 49:8 **unhappy** 27:12 28:1 UNIDENTIFIED 40:14 47:22,25 **union** 8:5 unique 10:6 37:16 units 23:15 31:17 35:4 University 50:9 unofficial 24:1 unprecedented 53:3 **update** 11:19 12:3 16:22 19:24 20:1 28:20 47:21,23 upstairs 61:17 urge 14:21 use 10:4 23:3 24:4 31:16 **usual** 52:1 **usually** 7:13

## v **v** 63:7,22 **vacant** 12:5,6 **Van** 27:17 vast 58:19 **Vegas** 36:2 vehicle 31:6 vehicles 20:12 20:14,15,18,19 22:3 30:19,25 31:9 **verge** 27:7 verifying 39:13 **Vice** 4:7 Vice-Chairperson 2:2 victims 61:9 **video** 18:2 **viewed** 58:14 **viewing** 4:13,14

viewpoint 10:7 violation 31:4 46:7 violations 20:13 20:13,15,21,22 violent 16:6,7 54:21 56:3 visited 29:16 voices 51:17 vote 32:20 41:22 42:1,6 voting 42:14

# W

**waited** 18:13 waiting 38:16 Walker 44:5 **Wall** 53:11 want 7:12 8:13 11:1,8 19:3 22:23 24:23 29:4,5,9 30:2 34:1 36:22 37:3,8,23 38:3 41:22 43:15 45:4 47:15,19 49:2,7,11 50:20 51:8 52:25 53:10,20 58:22,24 60:2 **wanted** 17:19 19:19 43:8 47:5 48:7,13 49:23 51:25 57:17 60:11 61:18 wants 59:14 war 53:3 warrants 20:18 Washington 14:21

29:8

23:8

57:5

wasn't 18:10

water 11:21

17:13 18:12

48:17 54:24

**way** 8:19 19:9

22:9 24:11

38:4 45:13

54:20 55:2

55:1 56:15,17

Wayne 52:11,24 **we'll** 8:5 16:11 22:17 39:8 59:21 we're 16:11 17:10 25:6,23 26:16,16 30:22 32:17 33:2 35:20 36:6,6 36:15 38:1,7 51:2,4 52:6,13 52:22 53:14 58:19 60:5 we've 5:6 23:15 25:23 26:13 35:19 36:3 38:6 50:15 61:7 **Weber** 34:6 **week** 9:16 17:3 20:12,14,17 29:16 37:15 52:1 53:18 54:10 **weekend** 16:15 **weekly** 7:15 weeks 9:19 16:9 52:1 weigh 27:11 welcome 32:22 37:21 welcoming 37:2 well-treated 18:14 wellness 35:25 went 17:14 24:9 29:8 38:16 40:1 50:14 51:6 weren't 54:22 57:3 West 44:19 William 2:7 5:2 Williams 29:18 44:6 Willie 2:4 4:21 12:9 38:19 win 31:3 **wisdom** 5:16 54:19 wish 28:20 36:16

witness 63:11,14 witnessed 19:4 30:7 woman 50:21 55:2 women 32:25 37:3 51:9 wonderful 33:3 34:10 36:13 49:8 51:16 work 8:16 9:23 10:1 11:9 12:21 19:4 24:15 26:18 33:20,21 37:23 49:3 56:1 58:20 59:3,4 worked 35:6 47:6 47:9 **worker** 36:25 working 20:9 29:19 31:13 45:22 46:2 53:22,23 61:22 works 61:20 world 14:24 worse 54:23 worst 53:12 54:11 worth 38:16 Wright 40:22 wrong 48:16 wrote 53:11 Wyrick 8:22

## Х

Y y'all 30:15 49:12 **Yeah** 40:15 **year** 19:23 27:3 32:25 33:2,17 34:10,15,20 35:1,1,20,21 35:22 37:16 39:4 46:15 51:10 **years** 26:5,15 33:16,16 44:14 46:24,25 47:6 58:13 yesterday 13:25

43:17

**3,000** 14:4,7,20 54:23 young 14:8 16:17 **3:00**1:3 4:3 30:21 33:19 9:19 44:2 **32** 20:13 37:9,9,11 38:18 49:1 350 58:19 50:3 52:9 4 60:22 **4** 2:4 4:22 20:21  $\mathbf{z}$ **4:17** 62:9 **zero** 52:11 **40** 51:7 zero-tolerance **40,000** 35:23 55:9 **4125** 44:19 **zoning** 52:2 53:8 **45** 27:2 45,000-dollar 35:17 **07-25-2024** 63:25 **48226** 1:6 **4th** 10:21 15:13 1 5 **1**1:8 2:5 46:16 **5** 20:13 **11** 16:6 **12**16:8 20:20 **50** 14:12 24:12 50:12 51:7 **12th** 44:4 **1301**1:5 44:3 **501(c)(3)** 32:17 **14**6:12 **57** 20:21 **15** 20:21 **5th** 10:19,22 **16** 20:19 15:10,14,15,16 **18-wheeler** 30:21 6 **18255** 50:3 51:11 **18th** 11:12 12:2 6:30 44:4 20:4 **60** 18:7 26:5 **63**1:8 2 **67,911** 35:14 **20** 17:18 46:24 7 **2001** 32:15 **7** 2:7 5:3 16:7 2003 32:14 **2017** 32:12 46:16 50:14 **71** 20:13,15 **2018** 1:3 4:2 6:12 35:13 **7th** 32:19 **21** 1:3 4:2 8 21st 6:2 **22** 16:22 8 44:19,19 **23** 11:13 16:25 8-month-old 17:21 18:7 14:11 **250** 17:12,15 80 20:12,15 **26** 20:19 50:12 27th 11:5 **80's** 53:9 **28th** 44:2 **83** 20:18 **29** 47:6 **8431** 44:6 29th 33:2 9 90 50:12 **95** 20:18 **3**2:6 5:1

990 33:21